


STATE

WINDSOR COUNTY COURT
v -
DECEMBER TERM, 1926
JOHN C. WINTERS

RESPONDENT'S EXCEPTIONS

_ This is a prosecution by indictment for murder;-trial by j ury at
said Term; Thompson, J. presiding; verdict, guilty of murder in the
first degree; judgment upon verdict; exceptions by the respondent:
respondent not sentenced.

During the course of the trial the State offered various evidence,
which was objected to by the respondent, admitted by the Court, and
exceptions allowed to the respondent for such admission. The re-
spondent offered various evidence which was objected to by the State,
excluded by the Court, and exceptions allowed to the respondent for
such exclusion. Certain motions were made by the respondent and by
the State which were decided by the Court adversely to the contention
of the respondent, and to such rulings the respondent was allowed ex-
ceptions. During the course of the arguments to the jury the respond-
ent objected to certain arguments then being made by eounsel for
the State, the objections were overruled, the argument permitted, and
the respondent allowed exceptions. The respondent further asked for
and was allowed exceptions to the charge of the Court as given, to the
failure of the Court to charge asg requested and to the failure of the
Court to charge af all on certain subjects.

The exceptions fully appear by the stenographic reporter’s official
transcript in said cause. Said transcript, certified to by the reporter,
together with the exhibits in the case, are hereby referred to and made

1



- a part hereof and are to control. The same‘is to be the Bill of Excep-
tions and is referred to for the purpoese of showing the tendeney of the
evidence, claims and concessions of the parties, motions, rulings, ex-
ceptions taken during the trial, and charge of the Court and excep-
tions thereto.” The same may be referred to for all purposes connected
with the trial, but the same need not be printed, and only ore copy
furnished the Court, ~

The stenographie reporter’s transcript provided for by Sec. 1623
of the General Laws of Vermont shall be the transcript referred to,
and in compliance with Sec. 5 of Rule 32 of the County Court Rules,

Amended exceptions allowed, execution of sentence stayed and
cause passed to Supreme Court.

Dated at Newfane in the County of- Windham this 3rd day of
May, A. D. 1927,

FRANK D. THOMPSON,
Presiding Judge.

EXCEPTION 1L

During the direct examination of Dr. Fred 3. Kent he was in-
quired of concerning certain marks on the sheet at the foot of the bed
on which Miss Gullivan was found lying and exception was taken as
follows (Tr. pp. 152, 153).

“Q. You have referred to some material that was at the foot
of the bed on the sheet. That we may not have any mis-
take and that we may understand each other, you stated
further, if I heard correctly, that there were marks at
the foot of the sheet that were not loose material, is that
correct?

Yes.

Will you give us an idea of the size of those marks at the

foot of the sheet that were not material, that were marks

on the sheet itself ?
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Why, the size of my "hand, possibly: the palm of one’s
hand.

What color were those marks?

A dirt eolor.

Dirt color? A. Yes.

How many were there? A. There were two.

Where were those marks at the foot of the sheet with ref-
erence to the body of Miss Gullivan as it lay on the bed?
On each side. _

Did.you form any opinion at the time as to whether those
marks were made by foot-scuffing, or whether they were
foot marks or not? A. Yes.

MR. TUPPER: I object.
THE COURT: Your objection may be treated as having been

Q.

made bhefore the answer was received, and you
may have an exception.
What is your opinion as to whether those two marks at

- the foot of the sheet, which you say were about the size

of your hand, on each side of the body, were marks that
were made by feet or otherwise? :

BY MR. TUPPER: I object. In the first place the question is

leading; and in the second place it does not
appear the witness is qualified any more
than anyone else fo express an opinion on
this point.

BY THE COURT: Take the answer and note an exception for -

the Respondent.

Guestion read.
A, They were made by feet.

Q.

You say they were made by feet, in your oplmon‘?

A. Yes”



EXCEPTIONTI

G. W. Putnam testified to conversation had with the respondent
the night of the murder of Miss Gullivan regarding a conversation the
respondent had just previously had with one Stephanie Cole and ex-
ception taken as follows (Tr. pp. 430, 431).

“Q. And did you and he have some talk then?
“A. Why, he told me about her.

"MR. TUPPER: Wait a moment; that is not responsive to ths
question.

THE COURT: You can answer the questioﬁ yves or no. Strike
otl the answer.

A, Yes.
Q. What did he say?
Objected to.

THE COURT: What do you offer to show?

MR, TRAIN OR: That he came back and told this witness
~ that he had tried to date up Mrs. Cole for
that evening. This is on the question of
motive; and what he offered her; the
money that he offered her in trying to date
her up; and also in corroboration of Mrs.
Cole’s testimony when she testifies.

THE COURT: We will take the answer and the respond-
ent may have an exception.

Q. You tell what he said to her, what he told vou he said to
her.

A. He said “I told her that I had twenty dollars I would like
to go out and spend with her in a good time.” ”
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EXCEPTION TIL

During the Direct Examination of Wallis L. Fairbanks he was in-
quired of regarding marks on the wall at the foot of Miss Gulhvan 8
bed as follows (Tr. p. 462),

“Q. Can you tell the jury what kind of marks those were?
A. They were dark, black; dark colored marks,
Q. And from observing it did you draw any conclusion as to

what it was. A, Tt looked as though * *

MR. BICKNELIL: He is not answering the question.

That should be answered yes or no. Question read.

Yes.

Will you tell us what it wasg? '

THE COURT: He can state what they appeared to be.

They appeared like #* * *

MR, BICKNELL: 1 don't think he should tell what they
appeared like; he should tell what they
are.

THE COURT: He may answer and the respondent may

. have an exception.

A. They appeared like foot marks of a shoe.”

> ope

EXCEPTION 1V.

During the Direct Examination of Wallis 1. Fairbanks, a bed, a
sereen, two mattresses, a rug, bed room slippers, a pillow, a sofa pil- -
low, a clock, two sheets and a couch cover, which were in the sleeping
porch in which Miss Gullivan’s body was found, were identified by the
witness and introduced in evidence (Tr. pp. 457, 461). Ii appeared
from the testimony of the witness that there were other pieces of
furniture in the rocm, notably a sewing basket and a dresser or bureau
(Tr. p. 456). Subject to the objection and exception by the respondent
the witness was permitted to reatrange the respective articles so ad-
mitted ‘n the position in which they were the morning that Miss Gulli-
van’s body was found. The witness was also permitted to use the
State’s table, which was not offered in evidence, as representing the
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window sill and to place theclock, State’s 65, thereon. It also appeared
that the screen, State’s 60, was at the foot of the bed on the morning of
November 8th, (Tr. p. 455). The witness was then permitted (T'r. p.
462) to place the screen so as to represent the south wall and to then
point out on the sereen the position of the marks that the witness said
resembled footprints. Neither the bureau nor the sewing basket was
offered in evidence, nor were their relative positions with reference to
the other articles pointed out. ‘

EXCEPTION V.

During the Direct Examination of Mrs. Bessie Pandjiris, (Tr. p.
558).
“Q. In 1926 you say you were at the Evarts house at 7 North
Main Street? A, Yes.

Q. Were you there during all the year of 1926. A. Yes,

Q. What was your duty there? That is, were you nursing

some one? '

MR. TUPPER: We fail to see the connection of this line of

testimony with the respondent.

MR. TRAINOR: AT BENCH: The State offers to show that
at about ten minutes of two on Sunday morn-
ing, November Tth, this respondent entered
the house at No. 7 North Main Street, in
Windsor,—which was then occupied by this
witness and Miss Tottie Evarts and two other
ladies, and then and there assaulted this wit-
ness, with the intent to rape her. We offer fo
show his conversation there at that time and
place, and his actions with this witness,
claiming that those actions show, conclusive-
1y, his motive to be that of the raper. We of-
fer this on the question of motive, in connec-
tion with the Gullivan murder; and we furth-
er offer it ag evidence to show the respond-
ent’s presence at different places that night.
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- THE COURT: What time are you going {6 claim that this at-
tack was made upon Miss Gullivan?

MR. TRAINOR: After that.
THE COURT: About what time?

MR. TRAINOR: Between ten minutes past two and about
quarter past three, or three twenty-five, on
that morning, November Tth; and this is of-
fered also to show intent,

ATTORNEY GENERAL: This question simply bears upon one
of the side issues:

THE COURT: I understand this guestion is hreliminary, lead-
ing up to the main guestion.

MR. TUPPER: In the first place, Mrs. Pandjiris testified at a
' preliminary hearing, and it did not seem to me
that it would bear—if her testimony is to be
the same here, that it would bear the construc-
tion of an assault with intent {o commit rape.
I suppose, however, that if the State makes the
offer to show that, that in and by itself, that is
gsomething that probably we can’t take advan-
tage of until we come to it.

THE COURT: The way if impresses me, under the statute—
that tends to show that he merely broke into
the house—if he entered and was caught steal-
ing it would constitute burglary.

MR. TRAINOR: Yes, that is our version of the law; entrance
would be a breaking and entering.

THE COURT: Unexplained, assuming there was nothing con-
nected with Mrs. Pandjiris in the way of rape,
then it would be a breaking and entering with
attempt to commit burglary or robbery.
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oo MR TRAINOR: Yes, but we elaim that the evidence will show

that the intent was rape.
THE COURT: That is a question for the jury.

~MR. TUPPER: But this is offered by the State on the ques-
tion of his intent to commit rape on Miss Gull-
van.

COURT: I understand that, but I think so far as the rape part
is concerned, if the jury should believe that that it
would tend to show the lustful desire of mind on
part of the respondent, and tend to characterize the
act; if the jury should find that he entered Miss Gul-
livan’s place. Have you seen STATE v LAPAGE,
34th New Hampshire?

MR. TUPPER: Yes. .

COURT: And in STATE v SARGOOD, have yvou read that?

MR. TUPPER: Yes.

COURT: It seems to me this would have & tendency to throw
light upon the question. We will receive this evi-
dence, and will let all of it come in on this subject,
and the objection you have made may be treated as
applying to it all, without renewing the same as
questions come in, and you may have an exception.

MR. TUPPER: This is, undoubtedly, the most important legal

question that will rise in the progress of this
trial, on the question of evidence, and 1 wish to
make some specific objections, if I may.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. TUPPER: The respondent objects to the admission of

evidence offered.

COURT: When the words “evidence offered” is used it means
the subject matter, showing entrance of Totiie
Evart’s home and the attack upon Mrs. Pandjiris;
that is what you mean by evidence offered?
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"MR. TUPPER: Yes. The respondent objects to the admission
of evidence offered on the ground that the re-
spondent’s feeling toward this witness indicated
nothing as to his feelings towards Miss Gulli-
van; and for the further reason that his actions
towards this witness indicate nothing as to his
actions with Miss Gullivan. For the further rea-
son that his mental state, as indicated by what -
he said fo and did to Myrg. Pandjiris, indicates
nothing as to his mental state towards Miss Gul-
livan. And further, for the reason that the dis-
position of the respondent to commit a crime
is not admissible. For the further reason that
the commission or attempt to commit a erime,
other than the erime with which the respondent
is charged, is not admissible, unless there is a
causal connection hetween that crime and the
crime for which the respondent is on trial, and
there is no causal connection hetween this oe-
currence at the Pandjiris house and the crime
with which the respondent is charged.

COURT: 1t i admissible to show propensity to commit a cer-

tain erime.

MR. TUPPER I think that is not the rule in Vermont, as laid
down in STATE v KELLEY, as to the matter of
his presence; of course this shows, the offered
evidence, the exact opposite of this, because the
alleged crime occurred in one part of the vil-
lage and this offer shows the respondent in a
part of the village totally opposite. So, it seems
to me, it is not admissible for that purpose. If
the Court admits it for a specific purpose, for
that purpose alone, then we think the evidence
should be restricted solely to his presence in
that lecality.
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o~ COURT: 1 dow't think the Corrt will restrict it for that pur-
. pose alone. :

MR. TUPPER: There is something that Brother Bicknell
suggests,—taking the language of the offer in
the light most. favorable to the respondent, his
language and acts do not show an assault with
intent to commit rape. I ean see in the form
the offer is made that perhaps that objection is
not a geod objection, but I anticipate when we
get to the point where the specifie offer and the
language of the witness appear that then that
will be the case. I would like to have the State,
if the Court cares to do s0 make a more specific
offer as to what the State claims constitutes the
assault with intent to commit rape.

MR. TRAINOR: We are perfectly willing to do so. The evi-
dence will fend to show that this woman was
in her bed asleep, and was awakened by the in-
truder, whom we will indentify as the respond-
ent, grabbed this woman and struck her, and
dragged her from her bed on to the floor, and
that she fell on her stomaeh, and that he got
on top of her; that he gouged her eyes with his

. fingers; put his thumbs in her mouth toward
her jaw on the side; that he ingerted his hand
in her vagina, and agked her if she would take
it; if she wanted it; that he made a hand in-
sertion im her private parts; that she asked him
to let her up; that he did partially, holding on to
her left hand; and that then some people came
in and he ran. Now we claim that is fairly good
evidence of a man’s. intent.

MR, TUPPER: I don’t know as we can say it isn’t, but it is
not the testimony of the witness given previ-
ously,
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© - - THE COURT: All of this evidence, as to this océxsiod, may be
received, subject fo the objections stated by
counsel for respondent, and an exception is not-
ed, without the objections being renewed from
time to time,

MR. BICKNELL: I understand the Court to say as to each of
these questions and answers we have an
objection and an exception on each of the
several grounds, without bothering to ob-
jeet to each. '

THE COURT: Yes, all the grounds that have been stated.

EXCEPTION VI.

At BENCH AFTER STATE RESTS (Tr. p. 807).

“BY MR. TUPPER: The respondent moves that all of the evi-
dence of Mrs. Pandjiris and other wit-
nesses who have testified relating to the
asgault on Mrs. Pandjiris, be stricken
out, for the reason that the evidence does
not come up to the offer of the STATE.

BY THE COURT In what respect do you claim it does not
come up to the offer of the State?

BY MR. TUPPER: The testimony as to the assault is not quite
in accordance with the offer, I think. _

BY THE COURT: Do you mean the testimony does net tend to
show that he entered that house with in-
tent to eommit rape?

BY MR. TUPPER: Yes, Your Honor,

BY THE COURT: What do you claim the evidence shows that
he entered that house for, if it was the re-
spondent?

A. I can’t fell.
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-+ BY THE COURT

BY MR. TUPPER:

" BY THE COURT

BY MR, CARVER:

BY THE COURT:

BY MR. CARVER:

‘What is the inference to be drawn from a
man entering a house at that time of night?

I think the testimony in this case shows—
if an inference were to be drawn, it would
be the inference of robbery rather than the
inference of rape. The State expressly dis-
claims that the assault at the Gullivan
house was with intent fo commit robbery or
burglary, as 1 understand, as the case
stands at present. '

;. I don’t know whether they have disclaimed

that; they have claimed it tends to show
rape; but there is evidence from which the
jury could infer——if they find he was the
one who entered that he was attempting
burglary; 1 think there is evidence on
which they could find either one of thosge
two motives. How about that, Mr, Carver?

We made no disclaimer one way or the
other, but we did say in opening that the
evidence on the part of the State would
tend to show that that was the motive, and
that was in view of the fact that the valu-
ables and things which were there were un-
molested.

Do you make that disclaimer as to any in-
tent other than rape?

No. I think I should argue from the evi-
dence, as it now stands in the case, that it
was not a breaking and unlawfiul entry for
the purpose of larceny, though it may have
been; there are two inferences which
might be drawn from the testimony.
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BY- MR TUPPER: But the State has introduced evidénce, as
x to the search of the house there, for the
. express purpose, as I recall the offer, of

showing that the motive wasn’t robbery.

BY THE COURT: If the jury should find that his entering the
the Gullivan house wag not for the purpose
of rape but for the purpose of committing
lareeny, then it would be evidence tending
to show that house was burglarized. It
might be a question as to whether the
Evarts house-—in regard to that,—that is,
if he did not enter through open doors; but
the evidence would tend to show burglary
at the Gullivan house; and the fact remains
that Miss Gullivan was killed, and no one
knows except from inference to what ex-
tent the one who enterdd the hotise had ac-
complished the purpose for which he en-
tered. The question as to the breaking and
entering,—Jthink thereis no question there
was any other purpose than it was for an
unlawful purpose. I also think this evi-
dence as to the Evarts matter:—There is
evidence there, now, which tends to show
thatthe sameperson who enteredthat house
and assaulted Mrs. Pandjiris was the same
one who entered the Guilivan house,~and
that iz those burrs, and that material
found—if the jury find they are similar—
they must have come from the same
source. I think the State stated, didn’t
they, in offering that evidence, they offered
it on the question of indentification, too?

MR. TRAINOR: Yes.



- MR. TUPPER: No, not when they offared it: 1 understood the
offer, when they made it, it was for the pur-
pose of showing motive, knowledge and for the
purpose of showing that he was in that loeality.

MR. TRAINOR: The evidence as to the burrs and cinders * *
BY THE COURT: They are discussing now as to what your

o offer was.

BY MR. TRAINOR: The purpose of it? I don’t know wheth-
er the offer was asked to be dizclosed or
not. '

BY MR. TUPPER: Yes, it was.

BY MR. TRAINOR: It was for the purpose of identification;
that was the only purpose of offering the
evidence as to the similarity of the two
materials,

BY MR. TUPPER: You didn’t state that in making your offer.

BY MR. TRAINOR: I don’t just remember about what was
said, but 1 assume that was the way; 1
know that was the purpose of it, to show
the similarity of the material; that the
fellow who was in the Pandjiris house was

- the same as the one who was in the Gulli-
van house, because the same material was
found in both houses and both beds.

BY MR. TUPPER: This evidence taken in the light most fav-
orable to the respondent as to what took
place in the Pandjiris house would indicate
some motive other than rape.

BY MR. TRAINOR: His actions show what he was up to; he
didn't want money. Mrs. Pandjiris told
him to take anything in the house, and
still he persisted in his Iustful acts; she
told what he did and what she did or rath-
er what she said.
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BY MR. TUPPER: (Handing paper to Court) We have the
Motion written out.

COURT HANDS PAPER TO Mr. Trainor.

BY THE COURT: I think there is evidence tending to show
that, and also evidence tending to show
some other things, if the jury believe it, as -
identifying him. '
1 will overrule your Motion to strike out the
evidence, and allow you an exception.”

EXCEPTION VII

"~ The State was permitted to show (Tr, p. 334) that after Nov. T,
" 1928, there was blood upon the trousers and overcoat worn by the re-
spondent the night of Miss Gullivan’s death. To explain the presence
of the blood the respondent was inquired of and exception taken as
follows (Tr. p. 913).
“Q. Have you lost a finger at sometime? A. I have.
Which hand is that on? A. On the left hand (indieating).
When did you lose that finger? A. The latter part of
last April.
The last April that ever was? A, Yes.
19267 A. Yes.
Where were you when you lost that finger?
At my house, the house I am building.
Did you cut that finger off 7 A, I did.
After cutting that finger off, where did you go?
Directly home,
And after going directly home, what did you do?
Called in a doctor.
Whom did you eall?

CrOPOOPOOL ©O
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By MR. TRAINOR: Objécted to as immmaterial,

BY MR. BICKENELL: It is merely for this purpose. We
offer to show that at the time he cut
that finger off when he went to have
it dressed he wore the trousers that

) are in this case, and the overcoat.

BY THE COURT: Do you offer to show he got blood on

his trousers and coat at that time?

BY MR. BICENELL: No, we can’t; but we can show his
opportunity to have done it.

Exciuded. (Exception noted for respondent).”

EXCEPTION VIII.

During Argument of MR. TRAINOR by MR. TUPPER, (Tr. p.
993). .
“T desire an exception to the portion of BROTHER TRAIN-
OR’S argument where he says that there has been no evidence
produced here to show any suspicion of guilt, in substance, on
the part of anybody, except the guilt of the respondent, John C.
. Winters. We object, betause it is the duty of the State to show
the respondent guilty.
BY THE COURT: An exception may he noted for respondent.”

EXCEPTION IX. .

From CHARGE OF THE COURT (Referring to testimony of as-
sault on Mrs, Pandjiris,) (Tr. pp. 1017, 1018, 1019, 1020).

“It iz a fundamental prineiple of law that evidence that a respond-
ent committed one offence cannot be received to prove that he com-
mitted another and distinet although similar offence. " This rule as ap-
plied to this case means that the mere fact that the respondent entered
the Evart’s house and assaulted Mrs, Pandjiris, if you find that he is
the person who entered the Evart’s home and assaulted Mrs. Pand’ixis,
is not evidence that he entered Miss Gulilivan’s home and killed her.
And the Court wants you to distinctly understand that if you find that
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therespondent was theperson whoentered Miss Evart's iome and-ag-
saulted Mrs. Pandjiris, you are not to consider that fact alone as evi-
dence tending to prove the fact that the respondent killed Migs Gul-
livan. T
But evidence tending to identify a respondent as the perpetrator
of a crime charged, or tending to show motive or intent on the part of
a respondent, when motive or intent is in issue, or as tending to char-
acterize the act of 'a respondent, is admisaible in evidence to prove
such facts; although such evidence may also show that the respondent
has committed another and distinet offence; and when such evidence
tends to show motive or intent on the part of a respondent it is not
necessary that when the first crime was committed the purpose to
commit the second should be already formed and entertained. It is
enough if the commission of the first crime is so related to the second
as to shed a light upon it which may enable the jury to see why or by
whom it was committed.

. In this case if you find that the respondent was the person who en-

tered the Evarts home and assaulted Mrs. Pandjiris, the evidence of
that transaction will be considered by you only as it tends to identify
the respondent as the murderer of Miss Gullivan, and as showing the
motive and intent of the respondent and as characterizing his act in
killing Miss Gullivan, if you find that he did kill her.

You will first carefully consider the evidence tending to show that
the respondent was the pérson who entered the Evarts home and as-
saulted Mrs. Pandjiris; if from a consideration of such evidence and
the circumstances bearing upon that matter, you are satisfied beyond a
reasonable doubt that the respondent was the person who entered that
home and assaulted Mrs. Pandjiris you will next eonsider the bearing
which the evidence concerning that entering and assault has upon the
killing of Miss Gullivan. '

If you are zatisfied beyond a reasonable doubt that the burrs
found in Mrs. Pandjiris’s room and the material found in Mrs. Pand-
Jiris’s bed (and I refer now to the coal ashes and cinders testified to
by Mr. Lomkard and Mr. Degnan and others) came from the elothing
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of the respondent, and that sueh burrs and material are so similay to
the burrs and material found on and in the bed of Miss Gullivan that
they must have come from the same source, namely from the respond-
ent’s clothing, then that is evidence tending to identify the respondent
as the person who killed Miss Gullivan, and may be considered by you
as evidence of that fact, together with the other evidence in the ease,

The evidence of the State further tends to show that the respond-
ent entered the Kvaris home and assaulted Mrs. Pandjiris with the in-
tent to rape her, but was frightened away before he accomplished his
purpose. Now, if you are satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt that
the respondent did enter the Evart’s home and assault Mrs. Pandjiris
with the intent to rape her, that is evidence {ending to show the lust-
ful thoughts which were then in his mind, and that he had formed in
his mind a plot to commit the crime of rape; and if you are satisfied
beyond a reasonable doubt that the respondent ig the person who killed
Cecelia Gullivan, it is evidence bearing upon the motive with which he
entered Miss Gullivan’s home, and bearing upon the character of the
‘Thomicide of Miss Gullivan, as being a murder committed while per-
petrating or attempting to perpetrate rape; it tends to show the ex-
istence in the mind of the respondent of a motive or passion which
might render an attempt to commit rape upon Cecelia Gullivan more
probable than it might otherwise seem fo you.”

AT BENCH:

“BY MR. TUPPER: Respondent excepts to all of the charge
of the Court as to the use that the jury
may make of the testimony of the assault
on Mrs. Pandjiris.

* ' Respondent excepts to that part of the

: Charge wherein the Court states, in sub-

stance, that if the jury find that the re-

spondent assaulted Mrs. Pandjiris it is evi-

_ dence of his state of mind and tends to

. show his state of mind towa.rds Cecelia
Gullivan.”
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STATE OF VERMONT
SUPREME COURT,
v WINDSOR COUNTY,

‘ ' JANUARY TERM, 1928.
JOHN C. WINTERS

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Respendent, John C. Winters, was indicted for the murder of
Cecelia Gullivan in Windsor, Vermont, on November Tth, 1926, The
evidence of the State tended to show that Cecelia Gullivan, a single
woman, lived alone in a bungalow on Clough Avenue in the Village of
Windsor; that she was employed in the office of the Cone Automatie
Machine Company and that the respondent, John C. Winters, worked
in the shop of the Cone Automatic Machine Company as a mechanie.

The testimony of the State further tended to show that on Sat-
urday evening, November 6th, shortly after ten o’clock, Miss Gullivan
~went to ride with Frank L. Cone, Manager of the Cone Automatic
Machine Company; returning home between eleven and eleven thirty
P. M., that said Frank L. Cone left Miss Gullivan’s home directly after
their return, There was no direct testimony as to any other person
seeing Miss Gullivan between that time and shortly after eight a. m.
. on Monday morning, November 8th.

On Monday morning, November 8th, Miss Gullivan did not report
at the office of the Cone Automatic Machine Company and the said
Frank L. Cone went to her bungalow and discovered her dead body ly-
ing upon a couch in a sleeping poreh in the rear of the bungalow. 1t ap-
peared that the couch or couch bed was the bed upon which she ordi-
narily slept in the sleeping poreh. The said Frank L. Cone notified the
Sheriff’s department of Windsor County and the police officer of Wind-
sor, and later in the day a post mortem examination was made by Dr.
F. 8. Kent of the Vermont State Laboratory of Hygiene.
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Dr. Kent testified that he went fo Windsor on November 8th with
E. C. Brown of the Attorney General’s office, arriving there between
three thirty and four o’clock in the afterncon, That he went directly to
Miss Gullivan’s home and performed an antopsy upon her body. That
he found her body covered with bed elothing lying upon the eouch in
the sleeping porch, the head lying on the left side; that her face
showed three or four wounds on the right side, and there were seven
or eight wounds on the right side of her head; that her death was
caused by loss of blood from the wounds. Miss Gullivan was undressed
and clothed only in a nightdress, and there was a quantity of blood on
the bed and on the nightdress. That he observed some material on the
" sheet at the foot of the bed on each side of the body, and among this
material were burdock burrs. He also testified, under exception of the
respondent, that there were marks on each side of the body at the foot
of the sheet that were not loose material and that, in his opinion, these
marks were foot prints. ‘

Dr. Kent further testified that the body was removed to the Cabot
Undertaking Rooms in Windsor and an autopsy there performed.
Neither this witness or any other witness for the State testified to any
marks or bodily conditions indicating rape or attempted rape.

The witness, Dr. Kent, testified further that Miss Gullivan had a
- large vaginal tumor which had almost completely obstructed the pas-
sage to the vagina so that it was impossible for her to have sexual in-
tercourse. ‘

Wallis L. Fairbanks, Sheriff of Windsor County, testified to the
appearance of the marks and that they resembled footprints.

It appeared that the bed or couch bed was in the southwest cor-
ner of the sleeping porch; that there was a bureau or dresser in the
southeast corner of the sleeping porch, a matter of a few feet from the
bed, 2 sereen at the foot of the bed, and a sewing basket in the north-
east corner of the gleeping porch,

It further appeared that a cellar window on the north end of the
bungalow from which a person might have access to the sleeping
porch, had been removed.




The rear of Miss Gullivan’s bungalow faces a declivity leading
down to a pond formed by the damming of a stream at the entrance to
a rough, rocky gorge. The dam 15 of cement and around the east side
of the pond, leading from the east end of the dam is a high wire
fence made high and tight with the object of keeping trespassers from
- the pond and the dam. Af a short distance from the west end of the
dam is a street across or along which the respondent passed on his
way to and from his home to the Cone Automatic Machine Company,
or to the business part of Windsor Village.

The evidence of the State tended to show that Miss Gullivan’s
business occasionally took her out into the shop when she passed near
where the respondent was working, and that the respondent had made
remarks and did certain things tending to show that he had a desire
to have sexual intercourse with Miss Gullivan.

The evidence on the part of the State tended to show that the re-
spendent on the evening of November 6th procured a bottle of alcohol,
the greater part of which he drank. That on two oecasions during the
evening he went to a place in Windsor Village and procured alcohol
which he drank. That he met a man named George Putnam with whom
he drank and talked. That he left Putnam, and in Putnam’s sight had
a conversation with a Mrs. Stephanie Cole. That after he returned
from talking with Mrs. Cole he told Putnam, under the objection and
exeception of the respondent, that he had told Mrs, Cole that he had
twenty dollars that he ‘was willing to spend on a good time with her
and that Mrs. Cole told him that wasn’t enough.

Subject to the objection and exception of the respondent, Putnam
wag permitted to testify that the respondent told Putnam that he had
never been o a dance and would like to go to Hartland with him to a
dance to be held there that evening. '

The testimony on behalf of the State tended to show movements
of the respondent during the evening, and subject to the objection
and exception of the respondent, one Reginald Hutt testified that he
met Winters and Winters said he wanted to borrow some money. Otto
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Hochstein testlﬁed to his calling at his house and trying to get Hoch-
stein to go somewhere with him to play cards.

The testimeony of the State showed that Winters was seen in the
vieinity of the Putnam Block in Windsor, Vermont, about twelve
o’cloek, and at that time was somewhat under the mﬁuence of liquer
but could walk and talk all right.

Subject to objection and exception of the respondent, the State
was permitted to show that about two p. m. ont Sunday morning a2 man
entered the home of Miss Tottie Evarts, a house distant about one mile
and 24 rods from the home of Miss Gullivan, and made an assault up-
on Mrs. Bessie Pandjiris, an inmate of Miss Evarts’ home ; that he was
driven away by the awakening of other inmates of the house; that he
broke out of the house and disappeared. Later, Mrs. Pandjiris identi-
fied the respondent as the person who entered the house.

Evidence was also introduced tending to show that there were
footprints near a burdock bush across the road from the Evarts
home. These footprints lead up the bank and toward the Evarts
home. There was also evidence tending to show that there were bur-
dock burrs or pieces of burdock burrs left on the bed on which Mrs.
Pandjiris was lying at the time of the assault upon her; also, locse
dirt on the bed which the testimony tended to show resembled the
Joose material found in the Gullivan bed.

It appeared that on Monday, November 8th, the Chief of Police of
Windsor and other officers went to the home of the respondent and
found a shirt, overcoat, trousers and sweater whiech the respondent
said he had worn the previous Saturday night. That the testimony
~ of the State tended to show that there was blood on the coat and trou-
sers, :

A. EXCEPTION TO EVIDENCE
EXCEPTION NO. 1.

The witness, Dr. Kent, testified as to the matiers objected to on a
subject in which it did not appear that he had expert knowledge, and
on this point was testifying as a lay witness. He testified as to the ap-
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pearance of certain marks at the foot of the sheet with réference to
the body of Miss Gullivan and described them. He was then asked to
express his opinion, but his opinion was not confined to the facts
about which he had testified. In this there was error. _

The opinion given must be based upon the testimony of the wit-
ness as. to the facts and circumstances testified to by the witness in or-
der that the jury may give the opinion itg proper weight,

Londonderry v. Fryor, 84 Vt. 294, 79 Atl 46.

In Re Wood’s Will, 95 Vit. 407, 115 Atl. 281,

Foster’s Exrs. v. Dickerson, 64 Vi. 283, 24 Atl. 253.

In Re Estate of Martin, 92 V. 862, 104 Atl. 100.

Maughan v. Estate of Burns, 64 Vt. 316, 23 Atl. 583,
" Hefflon v. Cashman, 92 Vt. 323, 103 Atl. 1023.

EXCEPTION NO. II.

To sustain the admission of evidence regarding the statements of
the respondent as to what he said to Mrs. Cole, it is necessary that the
Court hold that evidence of a solicitation by the respondent to have
‘sexual intercourse with one woman is evidence of the respondent’s mo-

“tive to rape Cecelia Gullivan about six hours afferward. This is carry-
ing the “State of mind” idea to its logical conclusion. If admissible to
show his “State of mind” on this evening, why would not evidence of
‘the same kind as to oecurrences three or four days before be admissi-
ble? Why not three months before? Or three years before? The
answer i that the law is that the respondent’s tendency or disposition
to eommit & certain crime may not be shown. The only answer fo this
is that this may be shown as a temporary condition. If so, why not as
a permanent condition? -Where is the distinetion? There can be no
question but that this evidence was extremely prejudicial to the re-
gpondent. \ _ : ‘ '

EXCEPTION NO. II

Exception No, 3 is go closely related to Exeeption No. 1 that what
has been said relative to that Exception applies to this.
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EXCEPTION NO. IV.

The Court was in error in perm1tt1ng the partial re-arrangement
of the articles in the sleeping porch in the Gullivan house. Photo-
graphs had been introduced showing the interior of the sleeping porch
{See State’s Exs. 18, 14, 15). This re-arrangement could serve no use-
ful purpose or be of any aid to the jury in visualizing the room. It
could not constitute a true picture for the following reasons:—

1t did not show the walls of the room.
- It did not show the size of the room.
It did not show the position of the doors in the room.

= RN

It did not profess to be a re-arrangement of all the articles in
the room.

5. The screen, which it appears was at the end of the bed, was
placed so as to represent, not its position on the mornmg
of November 8th, but the south wall.

It is difficult to see the various ways in which the jury might be
misled by this demonstration. If the re-arrangement could possibly
be of any value it would be because it showed the whole room except
for the walls and doors. This was not done. It was an extremely dan-
gerous demonstration to permit from the respondent’s standpoint and
it is impossible for anyone to say that if it was error, it was not harm-
ful error. The following authorities, while not directly in point, show
the correct rule:—

Hardwick Savings Bank & Trust Co. v. Drenan, 72 V1. 438,
44 Atl.-347.

Congdon v. Howe Seale Company, 66 Vi, 255, 20 Atl. 253.

Hughes v. State, 126 Tenn. 40, 148 S, W. 543.

Baltimore & O. R. Co. v. Fouts, 88 Oh. 305, 104 N. K. 544.

EXCEPTION NO. V.

This exception relates to the evidence relating to the Pandjlris
assault.




.p”‘w“

The general rule is that proof. that a person ha:s peen guilty of
some other crime furnishes no evidence that he is guilty of the one for
which he ig being tried. The proof of the other crime under such eir-
cumstances is irrelevant and so not admissible. But it does not follow
that the Court erred in receiving the festimony excepted to. There are
eertain well established exceptions to the rule not to be lost sight. of.
Evidence which legitimately tends to support the charge for which the
respondent is being fried is not to be excluded on the ground that it
tends to show another offence.

Statev Kelley, 65 Vt 531 29 Atl, 203 36 AS. R 834,

When evidence offered by the prosecution in a criminal action
tends to prove a relevant or essential fact, and is competent for that
purpose, the circumstance that it also tends to prove an mdependent
offense does not render such ev1dence madmlssﬂ)le

Note, 62 L. R A 198, and cases cited. .

It is competent for the prosecution to put in evidence all relevant
facts and circumstances which tend to establish any of the constltutwe
elements of the erime of thch the respondent is accused in the case
on trial, even though such facts and mrcumstances tend to prove that
he has committed other crlmes

.- State v. Donaluzz: 94 Vi, 145, 109 Afl BT
8R.C, L. 199,

. The reasons for the general rule are well stated in Shaffher v.
- Commonwealth, 72 Penn. St. 50, 13 Am, Rep 649, a’ murder cage in
- which the Court sAys: :

S CRTY ‘A general fule that & distinet crimé uncdnnected'With that
laid in the indictment, cannot be given in evidence dgainst a prisoner.
It is not proper to raise a presumption of guilt; on the ground, that
having committed one crime, the depravity it exhibits makes it likely
he would commit-another. Logically, the commission of an inde-
pendent offense is not proof, in itself, of the commission of another
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crime. Yet it cannot be said to be without influence on the mind, for
certainly, if one be shown to be guilty of another erime equally hein-
oug, it will prompt a more ready belief that he might have committed
the one with which he is charged; it therefore predisposes the mind of
the juror to believe the prisoner guilly. To make one eriminal act
evidence of another, a connection between them mist have existed in
the mind of the actor, linking them together for some purpose-he in-
tended to accomplish; or it must be necessary to identify the person
of the actor, by a connection which shows that he who committed the
one must have done the other. Without this obvious connection, it is
not only unjust to the prisoner to compel him to acquit himself of two
offenses inatead of one, but it is detrimental to justice to burden a trial
with multiplied issues that tend to confuse and mislead the jury. The
most guilly eriminal may be innocent of other offenses charged
against him, of which, if fairly tried, he might acquit himself. From
the nature and prejudicial character of such evidence, it is cbvious it
should not be received, unless the mind plainly perceives that the com-
mission of the one tends, by a visible connection, to prove the com-
mission of the other by the prisoner. If the evidence be so dubious
that the judge does nat clearly perceive the connection, the benefit of
the doubt should be given to the prisoner, instead of suffering the
minds of the jurors to be prejudiced by an mdependent fact, carrying
with it no proper evidence of the particular guilt.”

In STATE v. LAPAGE, 57 N. H. 245, 24 Am. Rep. 69, the opinion
of Cushing, C. J., states the law in these terms at page 289;

“}1. It is not permitted to the prosecution to attack the character
of the prisoner, unless he first puts that in issue by offer-
ing evidence of his good character. . -

- 2. It is not permitted to show the defendant’s bad character by
showing particular acts.

3. It is not permitted to show in the prlsoner a tendency or dig-
position to commit the crime with which he is charged.

4. Tt is not permitted to give in pvidence other erimes of the
prisoner, unless they are so ' onnected by eircumstances
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“with the particular crime in issue as that the proof of one
fact with its circumstances has some bearing upon the is-
sue on trial other than such ag is expressed in the foregoing

- three propositions.” :

_ " In the same case Ladd, J., states the reason for the rule on page
300 as follows: ‘

-“Tf T know a man has broken into my house and stolen my goods, 1
am for that reason more ready to believe him guilty of breaking into
my neighbors’ house and committing the same erime there, We do not
trust our property with a notorious thief. We cannot help suspeecting
a man of evil life and infamous character sooner than one who is
known to be free from every taint of dishonesty or erime. We na-
turally recoil with fear and loathing from a known murderer, and
watch his conduct as we would the motions of a beast of prey. When
the community is startled by the commission of some great crime, our
first search for the perpetrator is naturally directed, not among those
who have hitherto lived blameless lives, but among those whose con-
duct has been such as to create the belief that they have the depravity
of heart to do the deed. This is human nature—the teaching of hum-
an experience.

If it were the law, that everything which has a natural tendency
to lead the mind towards a conclusion that a person charged with crime
is guilty must be admitted in evidence againsgt him on the trial of that
charge, the argument for the State would doubtless be hard to answer.
If T know a man has once been false, I cannot after that believe in his
truth as I did before. If I know he has committed the crime of per-
jury once, I more rapidly believe he will commit the same awful crime
again, and I cannot accord the same trust and confidence te his state-
ments under oath that 1 otherwise should. Yet, does the law permit
the credit of a witness to be impeached by showing individual acts of
falsehood? We do not and we can not believe a known liar the same ag
we believe a known man of truth. Why, then, ought not evidence
showing that a witness has lied on any particular occasion to be re-
ceived, in order that we may weigh the eredit of his testimony by rules

9




derived from human nature and experience, such as we naturally and
ingtinetively apply in the other affairs of life?

Suppose the general character of one charged Wlth erime ig in-
famous and degraded to the last degree; that his life has been nothing
but a succession of erimes of the most atrocious and revolting sort:
does not the knowledge of all this inevitably carry the mind in the
direction of a conclusion that he had added the particular crime for
which he is being tried to the list of those that have gone before?
Why, then, should not the prodecutor be permitted to show facts which
tend so naturally to produce a convietion of his guilt. The answer to
all these questlons is plain and decisive: The law is otherwise.”

This case was 2 prosecution for a murder committed “in perpe-
tratmg or attempting to perpetrate rape” under a Statute very sim-
11ar, if not identical with the Vermont Statute. Evidence was admit-
ted of a rape about four and half years before the trial, and it was
urged by the State that this evidence was admissible on the question
of intent.

There are various exceptions to the general rule which are classi-
fled in State v. Donaluzzi, as showing a common plan, scheme, or mo-
tive; as tending to illustrate, characterize or explain the act in ques-
tion; and to show how the business under investigation was conducted.
We say that the case at bar does not fall within the exceptlons to the
general rule, or any of them.

In McAllister v. State, 112 Wis. 406, 88 N W 212 the charge was
assault with intent to rape. The evidence showed an attempt to com-
mit rape upon one woman at about two o’clock p. m. on the day in ques-
tion. Another woman was allowed to testify against objection that on
the same day, just affer one ¢o’clock, the respondent called at her house
and made an attempt to commit rape upon her. As to this exception
the Court said: “Was the evidence of the separate assault committed
on Mrs. Casper an hour before the assault upon Mrs. Montgomery com-
petent evidence? 1t {s freely admitted by the state as a general rule
that upon a prosecution for one offense evidence of the commission of
another and separate offense is not admissible, but the claim is made
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that the evidence was admissible in this case for the purpose of prov-
ing intent. The rule that, where intent must be proven, other crimes
of like nature, which are so intimately related to the act in question
as to show a common purpose or a continuity of purpose in all, may be
shown upon the question of motive or intent, or to repel the inference
of accident, is well recognized. State v. Miller, 47 Wis. 5303 1 Jones,
Ev. 148, 144 ; Zoldoske v. State, 82 Wis. 580. The rule is one which is
not always easy to apply, and it is manifestly one which needs to be
most carefully applied and guarded, or it is likely to result in many
convictions based largely upon proof of the commission of erimes not
charged in the information,—a result which our criminal law does not
eontemplate. In the case of Proper v. State, 85 Wis. 615, which was a
prosecution for rape upon a girl, proof that the aecused had previously
got into bed with the prosecutrix and another girl named Emma, and
had sexual intercourse with the other girl, was held proper on the sole
ground that such an act was an indecent assault upon both girls; buf
it was said in the opinion by the late Mr. Justice Pinney:

‘We do not suppose that evidence that the defendant had coin—
mitted adultery or been guilty of acts of improper familiarity with the
girl Emma at another time and place would bé competent evidence on
the trial of the present i 1ssue

While this remark was obiter in that case, it is believed that 1t ex-
presses the rule which had been generally approved by the authorities,
namely,that in prosecutions for crimesof this nature evidence of previ-
ous attempts by the accused to commit the crime upon the same person
is admissible on an indictment for rape, though not for rapes on other
to commit the crime upon other persons is not admissible. Mr,
Wharton says: ‘Hvidence of prior sexual assaults on the prosecutrix
is admissible on an indictment for rape, though not of rapes on other
persons.” Wharton, Cr, Ev. (9th ed.}, Par. 46, If this be the rule as
to rape actually committed, it would seem to apply to mere unsuccess-
Tul assaults, where the purpose does not clearly appear, with equal, if
not greater, force. There may be a number of motives for the com-
mission of an assault besides rape,—such as robbery, revenge and the
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like,—and it can hardly be logically argued that because a man hag -

asgaulted two women, although the assaults were both on the same.
day, the same motive impelled both assaults. We are therefore of the

opinion that the evidence in question was erroneously received.”

In Farrig v. People, 122 111. 521, 4 L R. A 582,16 A. S. R. 283, the

respondent was indicted for the murder of one Stephen MeGehee, The
evidence showed that the respondent had been divorced from his wife
and she had married the deceased. That about noon on the 18th day
of April, 1888, the respondent came to their home and shot MceGehee,
and that soon afterward the respondent committed the erime of rape
upon Mrs. MecGehee,

Exception was taken to the ruling of the Court that the prosecu-
tion “might prove that the defendant committed the crime of rape
upon Mrs. McGehee within a reagsonable time after the killing, upon the
theory that such evidence tended to prove the motive or intent with
which the homicide was committed.” As to this exception the Court
said: “Our conclugion, from all the authorities, is, that whatever be
the object of the testimony,—whether to prove guilty knowledge, as in
prosecutions for passing forged notes or counterfeit money, where
proof of 'other offenses of the same kind is competent; to prove that
the aet was not accidental, or done by mistake, as in ease of poisoning
or embezzlement; to prove motive, as on trial of a husband for the
murder of his wife, in which case, in the absence of direct evidencs,
proof of adultery by the prisoner with another woman was held com-
petent; or in cages where the prisoner says he did not do the act, and
supports his denial with the assertion that no motive existed within
him for the commission of sueh a erime, or to refute some anticipated
defense,—proof of a distinet, substantive erime is never admissible,
unless there is some logical connection between the two, from which
it ¢an be said the one tends to establish the other. In this case, it must
be borne in mind that there is no evidence whatever eonnecting the
two acts, or tending to show wherein the cornmission of the rape had
any bearing upon or tendency to explain the commission of the homi-
cide, and therefore, if it be held that evidence of the one tended ic
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prove the other, it must be upon the ground that there is some natural
or obvious connection between the two acts. Did the proof of rape in
this case tend to prove defendant guilty of murder? What element
in the crime of murder was wanting when this evidence was admitted,
or what fact in evidence necessary to make out the crime of murder
did it tend to strengthen or corroborate? It seems clear to us that
these are questions which puzzle the legal mind, and can only be an-
swered so as to sustain the admissibility of the evidence in guestion, if
at all, by drawing exceedingly fine distinetions.”

In People v. Gibson, 255 Il 802, 99 N. E. 599, 483 L. R. A, (N. 3.)
236, the respondent was found guilty of statutory rape upon Ida Ce-
dergren, a girl twelve years of age. The evidence of the State showed
that the respondent had intercourse with the said Ida in the presence
of another girl named Nora Porter and that directly afterwards the re-
spondent had intercourse with the said Nora Porter. Nora Porter
testified to the same acts.

The Court said:—“Plaintiff in error was tried for rape upon Ida
Cedergren. If, as alleged, he a few minutes later committed the same
offense against Nora Porter, it no more formed a part of the transac-
tion with Ida, and was no more an explanation of that act, than if
it had been committed in her presence on another ocecasion. Proof of
it was no more necessary to an understanding of the question at issue
than the testimony of the other girls that on subsequent days plain-
tiff in error had intercourse with them, and their testimoeny the court
held was incompetent, and either refused to admit it or ordered it
stricken out after the witnesses had testified, The mere proximity of
time within which two offenses may be commitied does not necessarily
make one a part of the other. Immediateness is not the true test.
There must be a causal relation or logical and natural connection be-
tween the two acts or they must form parts of but one transaction.
Tested by these rules, it seems very plain the court erred in admlttmg

testimony of an offense against Nora.”

In England, 1918, Rodley’s Case, 9 Cr. App. 69, 3 K. B. 468, the
Tacts were as follows: :
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“The appellint was indicted for having in the night time broken
and entered a dwélling house with intent to ravish a woman. The evi-
dence for the prosecution was to the effect that appellant broke into
the house between midnight and 1 a. m., that the prosecutrix, hearing
a noise, came downstairs, when the appellant seized her, and pulled up
her clothes, and that upon the father coming downstairs he went
away. The defence at the trial was'that the evidence for the prosecu-
tion was not true, that the appellant went to the house for the pur-
pose of courting the prosecutrix with her consent, and that he did not
break into the house and did not intend or attempt to ravish her. The
prosecution tendered evidence that the appellant at about 2 a. m. on
the same morning went to the house of another woman, about three
miles from the prosecutrix’s house, and gained access to her bedroom
down the chimney, and with her consent had connection with her. It
was contended that this evidence was admissible to show the state of
the appellant’s mind and body at the time when he broke into the pros-
ecutrix’s house, and coupled with the evidence of what happened when
he was in the house was admissible to show the intent with which
he broke in. The evidence was admltted and the appellant was con-
vieted. —-The Court said:—

“Im summmg up to the jury in the present case the learned judge,
in referring to the evidence which is now objected to, puts the case in
this'way. He says: ‘Then he (the appellant) goes away, and the next
thing that is heard is that hardly a stone’s throw off the farm lives a
woman with whom he has already had immoral intercourse, The sug-
gestion of the prosecution is that he was raging with lust, and that,
being foiled as regards the prosecutrix Miss Jones, he immediately
went to gratify his passion upon the woman who he knew would not
- be unwilling to yield.’ '

Is the evidence objected to admissible upon the ground thug indi- .

cated by the learned judge, or under any of the rules formulated in
the cases above referred to? This Court is of opinion that the evi-
dence is not admissible. At the point in the trial at which the evi-
dence was tendered the defences really in issue were: (1), That the
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appellant never broke info the house at all: (2). That the appellant
did not break into the house with any intention of committing rape:

(8). That the prosecutrlxs story as to what occurred in the house
was not frue. :

- The evidence which was objected’ to was not, in the opinion of
this Court, relevant to any of those issues, and was not therefore ad-
migsible to rebut any of the above defences. If the jury believed the
evidence of the prosecutrix, the only issue was as to whether, in the
opinion of ‘the jury, the aets of the appellant amounted to an attempt
to rape, and whether from his acts the jury would infer that the ap-
pellant broke into the house with the infention of committing a rape.
In the opinion of this Court upon neither of those issues was the evi-
dence objected to relevant. - The conclusion therefore arrived at by
this Court is that the evidence objected to was not admissible on any
ground and ought to have been rejected.” ]

In Canada, 1912, R. v. Paul Atla. S. C., 5D. L. R. 847, the charge
was rape and evidence was admitted to show that directly after the
alleged rapé the accused raped the sister of the complainant. The
Court said: “It seems fo me that the line should be strictly drawn be-
tween a repetition of the act upon the same girl who is the complain-
ant and assawvlt upon another female. Where it was not necessary to
tell the one story owing to its being so mixed up with the other as to
be inseparable, it seems to me the only test to be applied is: has the
fact of his having done the second act any logieal probative force as
tending to prove the commission of the first? Put in this way, it
seerms to me the answer must be ‘No’—unless, indeed, it were open
to the Crown, as the Crown counsel suggested at the trial, to show the
existence of strong sexual passion and weak powers of control in a
man in order to show that he would be the more likely to commit rape.
This is really, it appears to me, the logical result to which the argu-
ment would lead.”

So in Parkinson v.People, 135 Il1. 401,25 N, E.764, a preceding rape
on the prosecutrix and another girl was held inadmissible. The Court
said:—“One of the grounds specified in the motion for a new trial was
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the admission of improper evidence on the part of the state. The tes-

timony of the prosecuting witness, Gussie Johnson, tended to establish
at least two'separate distinet offenses,—one a rape, perpefrated when

. she was alone with the defendant, and the other a ravishment upon

ariother and different day, in the presence of one Annie Moore. Itis a
familiar principle of our criminal law that it is not admissible to intro-
duce evidence tending to prove a similar butl distinet offense for the
purpose of raising an inference or presumption that the prisoner com-
mitted the particular act with which he is charged and for which he
is on trial. In Baker v. People, 1056 IlL. 452, this court said: ‘Upon the
trial of a party for one offense growing out of a specific transaction,
you cannof prove a similar substantive offense, founded upon another
and separate transaction, but in such case the prosecution will be put
1o its election.” There are exceptions to the rule above stated, but
the case at bar does not come within any of these exceptions. It was
error to admit evidence of two separate, distinet, and substantive
crimes over the objections of the defendant.

" The prosecutrix testified that one day she left school at 12 o’cloek .
and met Annie Moore, and that they went together to the laundry
of the defendant, when and where he made assaults and committed of-
fenses upon both of them. This evidence would have been admissible
had there not been before the jury evidence of an assault before, when
she was in the laundry alone with the defendant. Where a party is in-
dieted for one offense and a complete detailed narration of that offense
by the witness involves 2 recital of another offense, it is not error to
permit them to complete the detailed narative of the offense for which
the party is indicted, notwithstanding the recital of an offense for
which he was not indicted.” :

In Addison v. People, 193 Ill. 405, 62 N. E. 235, a prosecution for
rape, defendant’s conduct that day in becoming intoxieatéed and treat-
ing a boy to some beer was admitted by the trial court. The court
held this to be error and said :—“Counsel for the people say, however,
that intoxication does away with moral restraint, and that liquor in-
cites to evil actions, and renders a person more liable to commit erime.
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If that is so, they have found no authority for the admission of evi-

dence that one accused of erime had a mind susceptible to evil thoughts

or without moral restraint, either as a temporary or permanent con-

dition, The only effect of the evidence was to prejudice the jury

against defendant on aceount of an evil habit, and because he had done

wrong in drinking and gwmg drink to the boy. It was prejudicial er-
"ror to admit it.”

There would seem to be no particular distinction in principle be-
tween evidence of other offenses with third parties in rape cases and
in adultery eases, yet the universal rule is that such offenses cannot
be shown. If a man’s propensity to commit rape can be shown by evi-
dence of assaults on other women, why may not his propensity to
cormmit adulfery be shown. Does it not lead to the same conclusion?

In State v. Kelley, 65 Vt. 531, the Court said on Page 536:—"It
1s also held that in establishing certain offences involving sexual inti-
macy, the prosecutlon may show other instances of like criminal con-
duct between the respondent and the one with whom the offence is
claimed to have been committed. This is upon the ground that it is
proper to show the existence of a continuing adulterons disposition of
the two persons towards each other, and that there can be no better
evidenece of such a disposition than commissions of the act itself. State
v. Bridgman, 49 Vt. 202. But it will be noticed that thls evidence
touches only the respondent’s relations to the partlcular 1nd1v1dua1
concerned in the offense charged. Evidence of other offences is never
received to establish a criminal dlSpOSIthH in the broad sense of the
term, or a tendeney to commit generally offences like the one alleged.”

Ag to intent the rule is coneisely stated in Wharton’s Criminal
Evidence (10th Ed.) at page 140, as follows: “In many. eriminal of-
fenses, intent is the essence of the crime, and where not established,
the prosecution fails. In erime malum in se, intent is presumed, but
where not a matter of presumption, it must be proven as any other
fact, Where intent is material, the acts, declaratons, and conduct of
the accused are relevant to show that intent. Hence, evidence of col- -
lateral offenses is admissible, on the trial of the main charge, fo prove
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the intént. - To be admissible as relevant, such offenses need not be
exactly coneurrent, but if committed within such time, or show such
relation to the main charge, as to make connection obwous such of-
enses are admissible to show intent.” - ‘

The game author (Page 143) says further “For the same reason
evxdence of prior sexual assaults on the prosecutrix are admissible on
an indictment for rape though not of rapes on other persons.”

In State v. Lapage there is a Tull d:scussxon of the questaon in the
course of Whlch the court said e

‘;“.Was 1_t an intent to eommit murder in the first degree? The
answer to this is surely in the negative. Such a general intent could
only be shown by evidence of a deliberate and premeditated killing in
one.of the ways pointed out by the statute, or otherwise. Besides, this
question, 11ke the other, seems to be fully answered by the charge The
jury were told that the evidence is open to your eonmderatlon, if at all,
only so far as it may seem to you to bear upon the character of the
hom1c1de of Josie Langmald only as it may bear upon the guestion
whether she was murdered by the prisoner in perpetratmg or attempt—
ing to perpetrate rape. The intent, then, which it is claimed this evi-
dence was admissible to estabhsh wag an 1ntent to perpetrate or at-
tempt 1o perpetrate the crime of rape upon Josie A Langmaid at the
time he murdered her,. But an intent to perpetrate rape, or to at-
tempt ‘the perpetration of that crime, ig not What the statute requires
to make i;he killing murder in the first degree. The most that can
be said is, that intent may constitute an element in those crimes, as
i most others. To meet the réquirement of the statute, the act as
wellas the intent must be shown... The whole erime of perpetrating or
attempting to perpetrate rape must-he made out, and that includes all
questions of intent that may be involved. Was. he in the act of per-
petrating or attempting to perpetrate rape at the time he did the
killing? To this the state said Yes; the prisoner, No. Here was a
clear and distinct issue; just as clear and just as distinet as though
there had been nothing else in the case. The state charged rape, or
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attempt to commit that erime, as the basis of their claim that the
erdiet should be murder in the first degree. This charge they must
tove, or the claim based upon it fails, The guestion is, How is it to
e proved? What is the rule of evidence to'be applied? Is evidence
be received upon the trial that would be inadmissible if the charge
ere rape alone? If so, upon what ground? What principle of law, or
ogie, or humanity, will admit evidence fo prove rape when the conse-
uence of a finding against the prisoner is death, and exclude the
ame evidence when the consequence is only loss of liberty ¥

Tn People v. Molineux, 168 N. Y. 264, 62 L. R. A. 193, 61 N, E. 285,
i a leading case on this subject, the Court said:—“Second. As to in-
tent In the popular mind intent and motive are not infrequently re-
‘garded as one and the same thing. In law there is a clear distinetion
between them. Motive is the moving power which impels to action
for a definite result. Intent is the purpose fo use a particular means to
effect such result When 2 crime is clearly proven to have béen com-
mltted by a person charged therewith, the question of motive may be
of lttle or no consequence. But criminal intent is always essential to
the commission of erime. There are cases in which the intent may be
inferred from the pature of the act. There are others where willful in-
tent or knowledge must be proved before a conviction ean be had.— It
will be seen that the erimes referred to under this head constitute dis-
tinct classes in which the intent is not to be inferred from the eommis-
sion of the aect, and in which proof of intent is often unobtainable ex-
cept by evidence of successive repetitions of the act.”

Let us apply these principles to the case in mind. If the evidence
of this act was admissible to show intent for the purpose of showing
that the crime was not innoeently done, how is it possible for a per-
son to kill another or {o rape another and do it innocently. If there is
any class of cases where the intent may be inferred from the act it is
precisely in a case of this kind. The evidence shows conclusively that
Miss Guilivan met her death from a human agency; that a series of
brutal blows were struck upon her face and head, twelve in all. Could
such an act have been done innocently ?
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Nor was the evidence admissible to show the respondent’s “preg.
ence at different places that night.” The Court in its charge did not
instruct the jury that the evidence might be used for that purpose, but
did instruct the jury that it might be used for the purpose of identifi-
cation, to show motive and intent, and as, characterizing the respon-
dent’s act in killing Miss Gullivan, if he did kill her.

" EXCEPTION NO. VL

The State offered the evidence regarding the Pandjiris assault
on the ground that it showed an assaulf with intent to commit rape.
The witness testified that she was awakened by someone moving in
her room, that she saw a man moving from her bed toward the bed
occupied by Migs Evarts, that the man turned and made a dash for her
bed and struck her a blow on the head, seized her arms and said
“Don’t you make a sound,” “If you make a sound I will choke you.”
That the witness then screamed as loud as she could for help. That
the man pulled her off the bed and they struggled on the floor, and
the man choked her and said that if she made a sound he would kill
her, and further said, T am going to blow your brains out” and made a
motion as if he was going to get 4 weapon out of his pocket. That he
whispered “Shoot her Jack” and “Search the place Jack.” That she
-asked what he wanted and he said there was all kinds of money and
diamonds in the house, that he choked her, gouged ber eyes and her
mouth. That in the struggle her night dress came up over her body
and the man inserted his hand in her vagina and asked her “Do you
want it?” ,

‘The respondent moved that this evidence be stricken out because
.the evidence did not support the offer in that it did not show an intent
to rape taken in the light moest favorable to the respondent. Four in-
ferences might be drawn from the testimony ;—

1. An intent to commit an assault,

2. An intent to commit larceny.

8. That the act was that of an insane man.
4. An intent to commit rape.
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The evidence was offered to show motive to rape (Tr. p. 558) and
to show the respondent’s presence at different places that night, and
to show intent (Tr. p. 559) and the offer was expressly limited to
those purposes (Tr. p. 559). It was not offered for the purpose of
identifying the respondent as the man who broke into the Gullivan
house, The State had already introduced evidence to show that the
motive of the slayer of Miss Gullivan was not robbery (Tr. p. 208 and
274) and an issue of robbery was not submitted to the jury. The
evidence was offered and admitted to show motive and intent to com-
mit rape.

The intruder was wrestling about with Mrs. Pandjiris on the floor.
No inference could be drawn from what Mrs. Pandjiris says he did
with hig hand as this is something that would naturally happen under
the cireumstances. Nor do the words spoken necessarily bear that con-
struction. It should be borne in mind that Mrs. Pandjiris was under
great mental strain and would naturally ascribe to the intruder the
motive of rape. The offer did not include all the facts in connection
with what took place in the Evarts house, but Mr. Trainor assembled

~ in his offer the facts which would tend to show the rape motive, While

we think the Court was in error in receiving the evidence on the of-

“fer made on the ground that it did not show motive or intent, we have
" not briefed our exception on that point as the case made after the
evidence had been admitted shows error more clearly.

Where a fact is susceptible of two interpretations, that interpre-

tation should be given it which is most favorable to the respondent.
Burton v. Commonwealth, 108 Va. 892, 62 S. E. 376.
State v. Rogers, 166 N, C. 388, 81 S. E. 999.
State v. Marston, 82 Vt. 250, 72 Atl. 1075.

The Court in this case recognized the rule and applied it to the
offer made during the examination of Stephanie Cole (Tr. p. 499) when
it said:— .

“We will exclude that., While it is rather a close question I think
in a ecase of this kind the construction the jury should draw should be
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innocence rather than the guilty construction, because the respondent
is always entitled to the benefit of a doubt; and I dor’t think that
language is such that a jury would be justified, except in a process of
reasoning, to draw the inference that you ask them to draw. The
words themselves do not contain soeh inference. We will exclude the
offer.” ‘

EXCEPTION NO. VII.

The State introduced evidence that the respondent, after the mur-
der of Miss Gullivan, had blood on the clothing which he wore the
night of her death. There was no evidence tending to show anything
more than the presence of blood upon his clothing. The respondent
likewise offered to show that the respondent had some time prior to
the murder, while wearing the same clothing, cut off a finger. The
Court indicated that if the offer was to show that he got blood upon
his clothing from the wound it would be admissible, otherwise not.
The two classes of evidence were exactly the same, The State offered
as a basis of inference the fact that the respondent had blood upon
his clothing which might have been the blood of Miss Gullivan. The
respondent’s explanation was based upon the same inference. On this
point we quote from Wigmore on Evidence, Second Edition, Par. 149:

“The presence upon the person or premises of articles, fragments,
stains, lools, or any other resulting circumstance, is constantly em-
ployed as the basis of an inference that the person did an aect with

' which these circumstances are associated. In general, however, few

questions of relevaney arise. There are innumerable instances in
the records of celebrated trials; but their relevancy is so patent that
ne occasion is given for rulings of law:—It is to be noted that the op-
ponent may always explain away the indieation by showing other hy-
potheses for the presence of the trace,—as where, on a charge of
murder, the presence of blood stains is explained by the killing of a
chicken, or the presence of a weapon by the owner's previous loan of
it to another person.”

This principle is so elementary that it is difficult to ecite prece-
dents, -
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B. EXCEPTION TO ARGUMENT,
EXCEPTION NO. VIII.

Counsel for the State argues that there was no evidence produced
to show suspicion of guilt on the part of anybody except the respon-
dent. This was reversible error. The issue was the guilt or innocence
of John C. Winters. It was not the duty of John C. Winters to show
who commiitted the crime, or to show that he did not commit the
erime. The burden of proving the respondent’s guilt, beyond a rea-
sonable doubt, was upon the State throughout the trial. This was the
only issue. The argument was very prejudicial to the respondent as
it tended to give the jury to understand that it was the duty of the
respondent to show who committed the erime, and 2lso that the inno-
cence of all persons who might have committed the crime had been
established by a process of elimination. It will be noted that the re-
marks were not limited to the witness produced by the State. There
is no denying the fact that the minds of the jury would tend to in-
quire as to who in Windsor might have done this act if not the respon-
dent. This argument was outside the issues in the case and con-
stitutes reversible error,

Hall v. Fleicher, Vol. 136 Atl. No. 4 Advance Sheets.
State v. Fitzgerald, 68 Vi. 125, 34 Atl. 429,

C. EXCEPTIONS TO CHARGE.

Exception IX is fully discussed under the exception relating to
the Pandjiris testimony.

D. CONCLUSION.

For errors shown in the exeeptions, the Court should reverse the
judgment below and remand the case for another trial.

Respectfully submitted,
FRED G. BICKNELIL,
HERBERT G. TUPPER,

Respondent’s Aftorneys.
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STATE OF VERMONT l SUPREME COURT
V8. WINDSOR COUNTY
" JOHN C. WINTERS { JANUARY TERM 1928

STATE’S BRIEF
Robert R. Twitchell, State’s Attorney

J. Ward Carver, Attorney General

STATEMENT

- On Monday morn.ng, November 8th, 1926, the dead body of Cecelia
(Gullivan was found in her bed on her sleeping porch at her home in the
Village of Windsor. Her head had been struck with some cutting instru-
ment. The appearance of the head indicated that two different imple-
ments were used, ope on the neck and face, and the other upon the secalp.
There were many cuts upon the. head which were made with an edged in-
strument bevelled on one side. The vietim was found ly:ng with her face
toward the ﬁtﬂas she lay in the bed. She was undressed, and wore a
nightgownj

There was considerable blood upon the bed and sheets. At the foot
of the bed, below her body, were found gravé-l, coal ashes, cinders and
particles of fine coal or dust, and near where this material was found were
two scuffs of dirt, one on each side of her body, on the lower sheet itself,
which weare apparently made by a person’s feet. There were alzo found



in the bed burdocks and pieces of burdocks. The bed pillow was goné
Nothing in the room except the bed was disturbed. The coueh cover -
was nearer the body than the quilt. The bed was a couch. The covering °
on the bed consisted of two sheets, a quilt and couch cover, ‘

In the bathroom there was carefully placed clean and unsoiled clothing
in one place, and soiled clothing in another. Her pockethook, watch,
diamonds and pearls were found on the table in the living room, in ‘plain
view,

The victim owned the bungalow in which she lived. She built this
bungalow about two years prior to her decease. She was a single woman
and lived there alone.

The deceased was treasurer of the Cone Automatic Machine Cmﬁ-
pany, and as such treasurer worked in the office of the company centin:
wously and took active management in the affairs of the company, She
was & woman of considerable executive and business ability.  She was
forty-four years of age. The autopsy revealed that she had a vaginal tu-
mor, sometimes described as a fibroid uterous, which extended down in
such proportions and was of such size that it was impossible for her to

have sexual relations with a male person; that this condition had existed
in all probability for from five to ten years prior to her decease,

She was killed on Sunday morning, November 7th, between two and
four o’clock. Admission was gained to the house by the removal of a cel-
lar window on the north side, and the window frame was found helow the
house a short distance, on what is known as the Kennedy Mill Pond dam,
shortly after the homicide; that in going from the house to the dam, there
ig a high barbed wire fence with ap opening where a person can go through
by spreading the strands of barbed wire; that the pillow and pillowslip
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used by the victim on her bed were found tucked under a float which was
in the water at the Kennedy Mill Pond dam; that there were evidences of
blood on the pillow and pillow-slip.

It was the claim of the state that the person who perpetrated the
crime went down from the house, and across the dam where her pillow
and pillow-glin and cellar window were found; that the pillow-slip had in it
tears indicating that they had been made by some sﬁarp prick, like that

of a barbed wire fence; that respondent lived a short distance from the

Kennedy Mill Pond and for him to go to his home, the most direct route
on foot would be to go down through the fence and across the Kennedy
dam to his home. |

On the same morning, shortly before two o’clock, the respondent en-
tered the house and home of one Margaret Evarts and assaulted a Mrs.
Pandjiris, who wag a nurse in the employ of Miss Evarts, and who was .
sleeping in the same room with her in another bed; that the respondent
was seen by Mrs. Pandjiris leanng over Miss Evarts’ bed, watching her;
that at the right of Mrs. Pandjiris’ bed as she was lying therein, was a
floor lamp, and that she could turn the light on without getting out of the
bed; that all she had to do was to reach up and turn it on; that she did so,
and saw a man at the head of Miss Evarts’ bed looking at Miss Evarts;
- that he at once put hiz hand in front of his face and started foward her
"bed; that she then turned the light off, hoping that the intruder, seeing
that he was discovered, would leave the house; that he did not do so, but
struck Mrs. Pandjiris a blow on the head; that she grappled with her as-
sailant, and that in grappling with him, she felt something prickly on the
arms of his overcoat.

That the intruder had on & brown overcoat and wore a sweater that

had a band around the bottom of it; that the intruder was upon Mrs.
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Pandjiris’ bed; that he pulled her to the floor and got on top of her; that
he put his thumb in her mouth and she bit it; that she struck him wit ;
all the strength she had in the chest; that he inserted his hand in he
vagina; that while so doing, he asked her to have intercourse with him;’
that after a severe struggle, Mrs, Pandjiris succeeded in calling two oth-
er women, inmates of the house, who came downstairs, frightening thef
intruder away; that the assailant made his escape through the dini.ng'"‘
room, tearing the screen of the back kitchen door and breaking ocut the.
glass,

The police were called and neighbors summeoned, whereupon it was
found that on her bed were materials of the same kind and character as
were later found upon the Gullivan bed, ineluding burdocks. Mrs. Pand-
jiris positively identified her assailant as the respondent. It appeared
that the witness knew the respondent and that at one time he had worked
for Miss Evarts; that Mrs. Pandjiris was acquainted with him, she hav-
ing nursed ‘at the Evarts’ house at the time the respondent worked there.
It was not, however the house in the villagé, but a farm situated out of
Windsor village. ‘

On Monday afterncon following the murder, the respondent was de-
tained on suspicion. He wag found in his bed at his home with only
B. V. I¥’s. on for clothing; that when he started to dress, he picked a bur-
dock from his stocking and threw it upon the floor. His trousers and over-
coat which he wore on Saturday night and the Sunday morning of the
murder, were furned over to the state, and on the overcoat were found
different patches of burdocks. There were also burdocks found on his
trousers. The cuffs of his trousers were emptied and the material found
therein was preserved and shown to contain the same kind of material
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that was found on the Gullivan bed and on the bed of Mrs. Pandjiris.

Near the Evarts house, across the road, there is a tree at the foot of
which is a bunch of burdocks. There were foot prints around this bur-
dock bush, and tracks leading from it, up the bank, toward the Evarts
house. There was also blood on the respondent’s overcoat and trousgers
which he did not and could not explain, and also an irregular tear above
the knee on the back of the left leg of his trousers, corresponding to some
scratches on his leg underneath this tear. The material, including burdocks,
which was found on the clothing of the respondent, on the Gullivan bed,
and on the Pandjiris bed, was examined microscopically by Dr. Kent and
Dy. Whitney at the laboratory, and there was nothing found in one but
what was shown and found in the others. This material wag also produced
in court and examined by the jury with the same microscopes during the
progress of the triél, to show that the material found upon the respondent
wag of the same kind and character as that found upon the Gullivan bed
and upon the bed of Mrs. Pandjiris, all of which tended to identify the res-
pondent ag the perpetrator of the crime.

The respondent denied that he assaulted Mrs. Pandjiris, vet the mark
showed upon his thumb where she bit it, and the mark showed upon his
chest where she struck him. The person who assaulted Mre Pandjiris
had been drinking intoxicating liquor, and the respondent admitted having
drunk intoxicating lguor that night, prio rto the time of the assault on
Mrs. Pandjiris. The respondent, on various occasions prior to the mur-
der of Miss Gullivan, when she had come into his presence in connection
with her work at the Cone Automatid Machine Company plant, had done
and said certain things showing thoughts of a lustful nature which her
presence aroﬁsed in his mind toward her. The respondent worked at the
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Cone ‘Automatic Machine Company, and had for some time prior to the.
murder,

The respondent reached home about four o’clock on the morning of
November Tth. There was a chisel which cculd have made the wounds
upon her scalp, and a spring which could have made the wounds upon her
neck and face, found hidden underneath clothing and other articles upon
an old couch where a soda bottle containing aleohol was found on the Win-
ters’ premises; that the chisel, at the time found, had indications of fresh
iron rust on the cutting edge. No blood was found upon the chisel or upon
the spring.

The respondent failed to properly account for his whereabouts at the
{ime the murder was committed, claiming to have driven to Hartland to
attend a dance and to have passed over a new cement bridge which had
nof been opened for travel at the time; finding no dance hall open, re-
turned to Windsor and went in another dirgction about three miles to steal
apples and stole two. He claimed that he made these trips alone in his
Ford truck. On other occasions he stated that he had recollection of any-
thing that happened after midnight on Saturday, November 6th and that
everything was a blank. -

The respondent was also unable to account for the marks upon his
thumb, the tear in his trousers, except that he said he lied to the officers
about it, and the scratches on his leg and the marks upon his chest. It
is apparent that the person who killed Miss Gullivan was on her bed. The
marks on the sheet and wall indicate it, and the the circumstances indi-
cate that the purpose was to commit rape.

The respondent denied having been in the poolroom on the evening

of the homicide, and later admitted it. Miss Gullivan’s whereabouts on
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the evening preceding her murder were traced, and she was shown to have
ridden with her associate, Mr. Cone, in his antomobile; that she had made
purchases, had her hair cut, and gone to the poolroom to get a pair of
shoes which were there to be repaired; that while she was there, the res-
pondent saw her, stared at her, and did not take his eyes from her ag
long as she wag in his sight. '

EXCEPTION NO. 1
This exception refers to the testimony of Dr. F. 8, Kenf, who per-

formed the autopsy on the body of Miss Gullivan and who it appeared ex-
amined carefully the condition of her body and the marks upon her person
and upon the sheets and bedclothes in the bed in which she wag lying
when discovered after the homicide. The doctor n.otic:ed\two marks on the
- lower sheet about the size of the palm of the hand. These marks were dirt
~ color at the foot of the bed and on each side of the body of Miss Gullivan,
He described those marks as being foot marks or marks made by feet.
The ohjection made to this evidence was that the question which called
or the doctor's opinion was leading, and further, that it did not appear
\hat the witness was qualified any more than anyone else to express an
pinion on this point. (Tr. 152-153). The grounds stated in the respon-
dent’s brief are that the doctor was asked to express his opinion on a mat-
er not confined to the facts about which he testified, and because of this,
here was error, and the cases cited by the respondent are cited to show
th‘at the opinion given must be based upon the testimony of the witness
‘ o the facts and circumstances testified o by him in order that the
ury may give his opinion its proper weight. , A

The witness had already testified with respect to these marks, without
Objection, as follows:’ '



Q. Where were the foot marks on this sheet? .
A. Down at the lower part on each side. They were not foot prints; -

They were just scuffs of foreign material, not blood. ‘
Q. And were they on each side of the sheet?
A Yes. (Tr. 14_11)

During the cross examination of Dr. Kent, he was asked relative to
these marks as follows:

Q. You spoke yesterday about some marks that you discoverd on the
under sheet. Are those marks now on the sheet?
I don’t believe they are, Sir.
What hecame of those marks?
They were brushed off.
Who brushed them off ?
We did at the laboratory, .
Were there any foot marks on that sheet?
No foot marks. )
Won’t you describe those marks a little more fully?
They were a blotch of dirt-like material.

Q. And this blotch of dirt-like material was brushed off, you say?
Wasg it saved ?

PO P OoPOPOP

A, No.
Q. Can you describe that a little more fully?
A, I don’t believe I understand just the questioﬁ. .

Q. Can you tell any more about those marks on the sheet which
were brushed off ?
CAL Why, they were those blotches that looked like a scuff of dirt
upon the sheet; they were not looge particles of dirf. (Tr. 149)
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Then again in re-direet examination, the witness was further inter-
ogated as follows:

Q. You have referred to some material that was at the foot of the
sed on the sheet. That we may not have any mistake and that we may
mderstand each other, you stated further, if I heard correctly, that there
were marks at the foot of the sheet that were not loose material, is that
orvect?

A, Yes. ,

Q. Will you give us an idea of the size of those marks at the foot
f the sheet, that were marks on the sheet itself?

How many were there?

A, Why, the size of my hand possibly. The palm of one’s hand.
Q. What color were those marks?

A. Dirt color.

A, Yes, -

Q.

A,

There were two.

Q. Where were those marks at the foot of the sheet with reference
to the body of Miss Gullivan as she lay on the bed?

A, On each side.

Q. Did you form any opinion at the time as to whether those marks
were made by foot-scuffing or whether they were foot marks or not?

A. Yes. “ '

Q. Whether in your opinion,—what iz your opinion as to whether
those two marks at the foot of the sheet which you say were about the
size of your hand on each side of the bed were marks which were madg
by feet or otherwise?

A. They were made by feet. (Tr. 152-153)
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While we do not think that it can be fairly said that the testimony ofj
the doctor was that of 2 lay witness regarding the marks which he ob.
served on the lower sheet at the foot of the bed on each side of the body
of Miss Gullivan, yet the witness, in his examination with respect to those
marks, had fully described them, and wag inquired of respecting them
both in direct and cross examination, without objection, and after having
fully described the marks, the witness stated that in his opinion they were
made by feet. In this there was no error. The witness gave his opinion
based fully upon the appearance, character, size and location of the marks
in question, and only after these facts had been fully testified to by him.

In any event, the admission of this evidence was harmiess, as several
witnesses testified, wthout objection, In both direct and cross examination,
a8 to the marks, some referring to them as foot marks or foot prints.

Chief of Police M. H. Degnan was one of the first to observe conditions
after the body of Miss Gullivan was found. Respecting these marks, he
was interrogéted as follows:

Q. On that first visit, did you notice any marks on the wall?

A, Tdid.

Q. What did you observe?

A. 1see a dark mark about the size of a foot—of the sole of the foot,
on the wall right at the height of the bed. .

Q. Where, with reference to the top of the mattresg?

A, Just above it. '

Q. At the foot of the bed?

A. Yes.

Q. On that visit, the first time you were there, did Srou notice any
other marks on the bed? ’

A, Yes, we did.
10



Q. ‘What did you observe? What did you see?
A, There were two black marks about half the gize of the tap of a
shoe from the toe down. (Hlustrating)

Q. Where were those marks?

A. One was about nine inches from the foot of the bed and the oth-
er was probably very close to it, with the smallest point, I would call the
toe—facing to the back part of the bed. -

Q. And you say it was very close to the first mark?
A, Very close. .

Q. Where were those marks with reference to Miss Gullivan’s body ?
A. “Down near her feet and a little way from her feet.

Q. Which way? '

A. From the door east of her body.

Q. That would be the inside toward the door?

A. Inside.

Q. Which door do you mean?

A, The door from what I woud call the sewing room or femporary

bedroom.
Q. The door from the sewing room into the sleeping porch?
A,  Yes, sir, the inside door. )
Q. You say both marks were toward that door from the body?
A, No, they were pointing toward the body.
Q. What color were the marks?
A. They looked like a shoe. Like a smooch of coal dust would make.

Q. How did the color of those marks compare with the color of the
mark that was on the wall at the foot of the bed?
A. Similar. (Tr. 189-190)
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In cross examination, the witness was inquired of relative to the
print on the wall of the room {Tr. 250-251}, and the witness in cross exam-
- ination was further inquired of: ‘

" Q. When you got into the room, you first Inoked around, I suppose?
A, Yes,

Q. And you say at some time you observed these foot prints on the

bed?

I did.
Were they on the upper or lower sheet?
I would say the lower sheet.

O oPp

And were the marks'as you observed them—1I think you testi-
fied vesterday that they pointed toward the wall?

A. Just like a toe, pointed toward the wall.

Q. They were at right angles to Miss Gullivan’s body?

A. They were,

Q. And not parallel with the body?

A. Not parallel—those on the sheet?

Q. Yes, I refer to the marks on the sheet, You say you also ob-
served a considerable amount of dirt, gravel and burrs on the bed?

A. Some.

Q. You said yesterday a lot, didn’t you?

A, T didn’t mean that, if I did say it, say a lot; there was some. They
were prominent there.

Q. And what part of the bed did you see this accumulation of dirt?

A, In the lower part.

Q. Were those marks that you observed on fthe sheet that looked
like foot pfints, were they very dark. '

12



About the same as was on the Wéll, distinet.
Did they stand out very distinet on the sheet?

> o P

You could see them.

Q. Did they stand out more distinctly on the sheet than the print
did on the wall?

A. Probably a little different,

Q. Probably that was because the sheet was white and the wall
was of a darker color—that is right, ig it not?

A. That might express it.

Q. You discovered those prints on the sheet and the dirt on the wall, | .
or the print on the wall and the dirt on the bed before Dr. Kent came,
didn’t you?

A, The prints on the sheet, 1T did, and the prints on the wall, but the
dirt I didn’t see that until someone called my attention to it, I think after
the doctor came.

Q. How far from the foot of the bed were prints on the sheet?

A. In the vicinity of a foot.

Q. And somewhere near the lower part of Miss Gullivan’s body?

A, About where her feet may have been or reached.

Q. In order to observe those marks, you had to remove a portion of
the covering of the bed, didn’t you?

A, No, they was plain.

Q. 'That is, you mean to say they were not covered; that the marks
on the sheet at that point the covering was off ?

A, Was off, _

Q. So it was visible from the outside of the bed?

A, Yes. (Tr. 251-252)
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Deputy Sheriff E. D. Lombard, one of the first witnesses to view thé
body and observe conditions after its discovery, testified respecting the
marks as follows:
Q. In looking at the under sheet of the bed, did you notice anything"
upon it? ’ :

A. Yes; sir,

Q. What did you observe?

A. A sort of sand, gravel and specks of coal and cinders and bur-
docks, I saw.

Q. Where was this material on the sheet?

A Tt was at the foot on the back side of Miss Gullivan, and some on
the front.

Q. Whether the material was on both sides of the bed?

A, It was.

Q.. Did you touch that material?

A. 1 did not. |

Q. Did you notice anything else on the under sheet?

A, Yes.

Q. What?

A, Foot prints at the foot of the bed on the sheet.

Q. And where were those marks of feet with reference to her body ?
" A. They were just below her feet.

Q. How many?

A. Two.

Q. Did you notice anything else about the bed?

A, The smooch on the wall of the room.

Q. Which wall?

14



A, The south end of the room,

Q. What wall with reference to her bed as it was situated there?

A, It was the plastering and the bed was up against the plastering.

Q. The foot or side of the hed?

A. The foot.

Q. . How many smooches on the wall?

A. 1 only saw one.

Q. How big was that?

A. It mght have heen three inches long and perhaps half an inch
wide,

Q. How was that on the wall wth reference to the top of the mat;
tress?
A. T should say about even with the top of the mattress, (Tr. 272-
273) |
In eross examination, the same witness testified as follows:
Q. You said in your direct examination that you saw foot prints just
helow the feet of Miss Gullivan?
A. Yes, sir.
. Yes.
. Was that a plainly marked impression of 8 man's foot?
. Not in the center. Just the outline of the top of the shoe,
Would it be the outline of the bottom of the tap?

Yes, sir.

. Yes, sir.

A
Q
A
Q.
A .

Q. As though somebody stood on those sheets ?
A

Q.

Is that exactly as you saw it, that somebody stood on those
sheets?

15



Leaving their marks which you plainly saw?
Yes, sir,
What was the color of those marks?
Smutty color, dirt, black and grayish color.
I don’t know the color of smut. Was it coal dust?
Yes, sir,
And sand? .
No, there was no sand., Just those marks. The mark of the tap,
that is all.

Q. And marked in black from coal dust?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you see at any fime any other foot marks of the same color

PO POPFOPre

and shape that you have described?
A, 1 did not.
None of those downstairs.
I didn’t gee any.
You were looking for that kind of thing?
I was not looking for any foot marks. (Tr. 304-305)

oo

In direct examination, Sheriff Fairbanks, who made observatiéns of
the room where Miss Gullivan’s body was found, testified as follows:
Did you note any marks on the lower sheet or mattress?
Yes, on the sheet.
How many of those marks did you notice?
One,
How far from the foot of the bed was it?

I should say about a foot.

O P O PO
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Q. Can you describe that mark to the jury?

A. It was a black mark,

Q. Did you make some observations of it?

A, Yes.

Q. And from your observation, did vou draw any conclusion as

to What'had made it?

A, Yes.

Q. What did it look like?

A. Looked like a foot print.

Q. Yousay a foot print? Was it the foot print of & whole foot?
A. No, '

Q. How much of a foot print wasg it, or a foot mark?
A. About half of a foof print or a foot mark,

Q. And you mean half of the whole foot?

A. VYes.

Q. Which half was it?

A, The gole of the foot.

. Sole of a shoe?

A. The sole of a shoe, yes. (Tr. 463)

Rutland Sash & Door Co. v. Gleason 78 Vi. 215,
Murray v. Nelson 97 Vi, 101 and cases cifed therein.
Lowell v. Wheeler Est. 95 Vi, 113.

State v. Ward 61 Vt. 153.

EXCEPTION NO. 2

In showing the movements of the respondent on the night of the ho-
. mieide, it appeared that he went to certain places with the witness Put-
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nam and that some time during the evening, a few hours before the homi-
cide, while talking with the witness Putnam, he went across the street and
had some talk with a Mrs. Cole. This talk was had with Mrs. Cole right
after he had left the witness Putnam and after having talked with him;
that immediately after talking with Mrs. Cole, he returned to the witness
Putnam and had further conversation with him, and in that conversation
he stated to the witness that he had told Mrs. Cole that he had tweny dol-
lars and would like to go out and spend it with her in a good time; that he
was willing to spend it on a good time with her; and that she told him,
the respondent, that it wasn’t enough; that after that the respendent and
the witness waited until after the train came in. It further appeared
from the testimony of this witness that the respondent had been drinking
intoxicating liquor and also tended to show a desire on his part to have
gexua)l relations with Mrs, Cole. ’

It was the right of the prosecution to trace the movements of the
respondent that evening preceding the murder and fo show what the res-
" pondent was doing and saying. Other evidences tended o show; that the
respondent wanted to go to a dance and that he did not dance or know
how to dance; that he wanted to play poker; thab he was craving excite-
ment of some sort during the entire evening.

EXCEPTION NO. 3

The question and answer objected and excepted to of the witness
Wallis L. Fairbanks was with respect to the marks upon the wall of the

room at the foot of the bed, which marks had been testified to without ob-
jection by various witnesses, including the witness Fairbanks, and some

of this testimony appears in the evidence already cited under excep'tiox}
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No. 1. The witness was asked to tell what the marks were, and the court
stated that the witness might say what the marks appeared to be. The
- objection by the respondent was that the witness should not tell what
they appeared like, but should, tell what they are. Thiz was merely a
statement of the witness as to the appearance of the marks after he had
described them. The question was not objected to except that counsel
stated that he thought the witness should tell what the marks were. All
we have said in respect to exception No. 1 applies with equal force to this
exception. The admisson of the evidence was not error.

State v. Ward 61 Vt. 153.

EXCEPTION NO. 4

This exception was to the witness Fairbanks, one of the persons who
first viewed the body of Miss Guilivan, arranging before the jury the bed,
mattress, sheets, quilt, couch cover and screen in substantially the position
which the witness found them when he first viewed the scene. It was
not an attempt to reproduce the room with everything contained therein
in the exact position and location as observed by him. The bed, matiress,
sheets, ete., which were arranged by the witness were all admitted with-
out objection, and there was nothing in the nature of an experiment about
it. Afteér these articles had been identified by the witness and received in
evidence, the court permitted the witness to arrange them according to his
recollection as they were when first observed,

The jury could in no way be misled by the arrangement of these ex-
hibits, There was no attempt to show the walls of the room or to show
the size of the room by the arrangement of these exhibits, and the ar-
rangement of these exhibits did not attempt to show the position of the
doors in the room and did not profess to be a rearrangmement of all the
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articleg in the room. It was pertinent and material to show these various
exhibits, some of which were covered with blood and had been covered
with burdocks and other materials. This matter was wholly within the
sound discretion of the trial court. There was no error in permitting the
witness to arrange the exhibits in the positions he found them, after the
exhibits had been received in evidence. We can not see how the jury
. eould have been misled by the arrangement of the exhibits by the witness.
The arrangement of the exhibits by the witness was done solely for the
purpose of aiding the jury in seeing the exhibits as they appeared to him
when entering the room.

The cases cited by the respondent in his brief are not in point be-
cause there was no experiment attempted and nothing by way of experi-
ment done. It was simply the arrangement of the exhibits as they ap-
peared to the witness, and nothing more. Miss Gullivan was found in
this bed with various wounds upon her, There had been considerable evi-
dence as to hd,w she lay, where the blood was, how the wounds could have
been infflicted, whether there wag evidence that the perpetrator of the
crime was upon the bed. The arrangement of the exhibits gave the jury
the opportunity to see the bed, matress and bed-clothing in the position
found by the Sheriff hefore the body had been moved, all of which was to
aid the jury, if possible, in the solution of how the erime was perpetrated.

To be sure, photgraphs had been taken of the bed with the vietim ly-
ing therein, but that of itself did not render the exhibits inadmissible, nor
in any way prevent one who saw the body and the arrangement of the hed
and other exhibits, from reproducing them in the same position, as best
he could, in which they were when first obgerved. We feel that this ar-
rangement aided the jury in arriving at the true situation of the bed, bed-

clothing, ete. shown by the photographs, and was proper and legitimate
under the eircumstances.
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EXCEPTION NO. 5

The assault at the Evarts House on Mrs, Pandjiris and the murder of
Miss Gullivan are so closely connected that the evidence of one furnishes
evidence of the other, and the ev1dence of the Pandjiris attack tends 1:0
support the charge for which the respondent was being tried, and should
not be excluded on the ground that it tends to show another offense,

In other words, the evidence offered by the prosecution tends to prove
a relevant and essential fact in the Gullivan murder and is competent for
that purpose. It is always compefent for the prosecution to put in evi-
dence all relevant facts and circumstances which tend to establish any of
the constitutive elements of the crime of which the respondent is charged
in the case on trial, even though such facts and circumstances tend to
prove that he has committed another crime, '

This evidence was admitted on the question of motwe and intent and
to show the whereabouts of the respondent on the night in question, to
identify him as the person who killed Miss Gullivan, and as bearing upon
the character of the homicide of Miss Gullivan. It tended to show the ex-
istence in the mind of the respondent a motive or passion which might
render an attempt to commit rape on Cecelia Gullivan more probable than
it otherwise might seem to the jury. The court limited this evidence and

the use of it as the law limits it. /
| See charge Tr. 1017, 1018, 1019, 1020.
‘8tate v. Donaluzzi 94 Vt. 142 and cases cited, including

State v. Kelley 65 Vt. 533—State v. Sargood 77 Vi. 80.

Where evidence tendmg to prove another offense is offered, the same
considerations arise with respect to its admissibility as upon the offer of
other testimony. The controlling question is: Is the evidence relevant?
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Doés it tend to prove any fact material to the issues in the cage? If the
evidence iz admissible on other general grounds, it is no objection to its
admission that it discloses other offensives even though they are indictable.
The special difficulty disappears if the evidence is considered strictly upon
the ground of its relevaney to the issues on trial regardless of the fact
that it may inecidentally show the commission of some other offense.

Tt should be observed in this connection, however, that the evidence
of other acts is not admissible to prove the commission of the act com-
plained of * * * * * *the Corpus Delicti. But, speaking generally, such evi-
dence is admissible in a proper case as a means of identifying the respon-
dent as the perpetrator of the crime; or to show motive, intent, or guilty
knowledge on his part, when in issue; or ag tending to illustrate, charac-
. terize, or explain the act when capable of more than one construction.

State v. Donaluzzi 94 Vi, 142, Note 105 A. 8. R. 980.

People v. Jennngs 252 IIL 534; 48 L. R. A. (N. 8.) 1206,

‘Kahn v. State 182 Ind. 1. This doctrine is also recognized in
Qigte v. Williams 94 Vt. 423.

EXCEPTION NO. 6

What we have said with respect to Exception No. b applies with equal
foree to exception No. 6. On the respondent’s motion to strike out the
evidence of the assault on Mrs. Pandjiris, we note on page 21 of the res-
pondent’s brief that counsel say: “While we think the court was in error
in receiving the evidence on the offer made on the ground that it did not
show motive or intent, we have not briefed our exception on that point, as
the case made after the evidence had been admitted shows error more
clearly.”

22




The state claimed that the assault upon Mrs. Pandjiris was an as-
sault with the intent to commit rape, and while we cannot cite the testi-
mony of Mrs. Pandjirig in full, some portions of it would indicate that
rape was the purpose of her assailant. There was but one man who enter-
ed the Evarts house and assaulted Mrs. Pandjiris, although the assailant
endeavored to make it appear that he had an accomplice with him. After
the assailant had been discovered and had attempted to cover his face
when Mrs. Pandjiris turned on the electric light by her bed, she testified
as follows:

Q. When he put his hand up and you turned out the light, what hap-
pened ?

-A. He made a quick dash for my bed and struck me a blow on the
side of the head. (Indicating)

Are you indicating now where the blow was struck?

It was struck right here. (Indicating)

That is on the left side of your head?

Yes.

What did you do?

With all my might I struck him a blow in the chest,

What did you do then? ‘

T grabbed his arms,—something pricked my hand—I said: “You-
get out of here.” He said: “Don’t you make a sound! If you make a sound

I will choke you.” I screamed just as loud as I could for help. He choked
me. :

POPOPOPO

Q. Did he do anything else fo you there while you were in the bed?
A No. :

Q. What happened next? '

A. He took me by my arms and pulled me out of bed and I fell on the
floor,
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Q. You show the jury where he took hoeld of your arms.

A. Right here and right there (Indicating above elbow on each arm.);

Q. You say he pulled you out of bed? You go on from there, from
that point and tell what happened. ,
' A. 1 had a hard struggle with him on the floor; finally he got my
“face down with my hands underneath me and he on my back.

Q. Where did you land with reference to this chest of drawers that
you have described, as being in the room at the time?

A. Tlanded on my feet, near the chest of drawers and my head near
Tottie’s bed.

Q. You were face down on the floor?

A, Yes.

Q. How far were you then from Miss Evarts as she lay in her bed?

A. 1 was about three feet from the head of her bed.

Q. Could you hear her at the time?

A. Iheard her faintly call “Banche”,—after that she made no sound.

Q. Who is Blanche?
. A.  Miss Fowle, a friend, who rooms with us.

Q. The one you have described as rooming upstairs?

A, Yes. '

Q. When this fellow got on your back, what did he do to you?

A. He choked me. i

Q. Go ahead and tell everything he did to you or tried to do to you.
A, He choked me and he told me if I made a sound he would kill me.

He says: “I am going to blow your brains out.” And he made a motion as
if he, was going to get a weapon out of his pocket.

Q. Did you feel that motion as you lay there?
A. Yes, Ifelt him put his hand back but I felt no weapon. He whis-
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red “Shoot her, Jack!"”—1I listened carefully but heard no one else in the
yoom, In a few minutes he said: “Search the place, Jack.” I asked what
wanted. He said there wasg all kinds of money and diameonds in the
ouse. I told him fo take anything he wanted but not to kill me. 1 of-
red to show him, to tell him where everything was; I promised not to
mé.ke any sound; he choked me until my mouth filled ‘with blood and when
& would give me a chance to swallow I could taste the blood. Ihave long
ir, and I did not braid it that night, it was down by back; he tock his
and like that {grasping a handful .of hair on side of head) and .got a fist
and pulled it right out. -

Q. You show the jury where he pulled the hair from your head.
-A. Right here is where he pulled it out (witness removed hat and
cxhibited place to jury).
Q. Have you kept that hair?
Yes. _
Q. Have you it here? Has is been given to the prosecution, did you
g it somewhere? ‘
. I brought it to the grand jury.
Q. Now proceed with your description of the assault.
In the scuffle with this man my night dress had got well up over

You say he choked you and you felt your mouth filled with bloo‘d.

+ Yes, he put his thumb in my mouth, in my lower jaw I have two
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Q. . Wh,en he gouged yvour eyes in as you have indicated the gouging,

did he try gouging both eyes?

Yes.

What did you do when that happened?
. Then I thought I was going to lose consciousness, but I didn't.

Did he strike you?

Only the blow on the head in the bed. _

Go on from that point and tell what he did, what else he did,

My nightdress was well up over my body and I felt this man
shift his weight to his left elbow and with his right hand he felt of my
body; he felt of my buttocks, and he made a vaginal insertion with his

hand. T said “What are vou going to do?” He asked me “Do you want it?
You can’t do very much to defend yourself . "

Q. Never mind, we know all about that. When did be make that
statement with reference to the time that he made the insertion with his
hand,—at !,the same time or another time?

PO P OPOP

A, No, the same time.

Q. You tell what happened then from fhat point.

A. T said to him: “You must let me up”— because I wanted to get
use of my hands. So he let me get into a szttmg position, and I braced my-
self against the chest of drawers and he stooped down and took hold of
my left hand and tried to bend my wrist back, but my left wrist is stiff
(exhibiting same to jury) and you can’t bend it back, but he bent my fing-
ers back until T thought they were going to break.

Q. What happened then?

A. He told me not to scream, He put his face right down to mine
and said: “Mind you, don’t you make a sound or you will be a dead worman.”
I kmew better than to scream, but I wanted to make some kind of a noise;
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I wanted to get help; I wanted the people upstairs to hear me, so I said to
him, “Look out, I am deathly gick, you have got to let me vomit.,” Instead
of vomiting or screaming, I gagged and I made all the noise I possibly
could gagging and they heard me uf_)stairs.

Q. That is, someone came down?

A, Yes, Miss Fowle and Miss Stack came down; they opened the
door into Toftie’s room, there was a light in the hall,—this man took a
quick look, he turned quickly and darted through the dining room and as
he went he left a smirch of blood on the white woodwork. I watched him,
—there was a dining room. chair on his left . ...

Q. Could you see him when he went through the door?

A. Yes. There was a dining room chair on his left and he threw
that back of him; then I saw| him knock the lamp off the table and I

serambled to my feet and closed the dining room door. (Tr. 576, 577, 578
and 579) '
We submit in view of this testimony that there was evidence that the
assault upon Mrs. Pandjiris was an assault with the intent to commit
rape.
EXCEPTION NO. 7
There is no error shown by the record. The overcoat and trousers of

the respondent were admitted without objection in connection with the
other evidence in the case, and it appeared that there were blood spots up-
on these exhibits.

‘The respondent in his statement which he made, on the second page of
his statemgnt (tr.757), was asked:

Q. Were you shown some blood on your overcoat Monday night at the
State’s Prison by Mr, Brown?

‘A, What was said was blood.
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Q. Do you know how those spots that were said to be blood came on
your overcoat?

A. No.
Q. Have you any explanation at all about them?
A, No.

In the respondent’s direct examination, it appeared by his testimony
that the latter part of April 1926 he cut off a finger on his left hand; that
he went home and called a doctor. This was objected to as immaterial, af-
tér which respondent’s counsel stated that this was merely to show that at
the time he cut that finger off, when he went to have it dressed, he wore
the trousers that are in this case, and the overcoat. Whereupon the court
asked respondent’s counsel if he offered to show he got blood on his trousers
and coat at that time. To which, counsel replied that he could not, but could
show his opportunity to have done it. The question was properly excluded
under the offer made, because there was no offer to show that the respen-
dent got blood on his trousers and coat in April 1926 or that there was blood
on his finger. Under the circumstances, there being no offer made to show
that the respondent got any blood upon his trousers and coat even at that
remote time, the exclusion was within the sound diseretion of the trial
court.

The respondent’s quotation from Wigmore on Evidence, Second Edi-
tion, paragraph 149, does not include the whole text of the section quoted,

and it will be noticed from an examination of this paragraph that the lan-
guage used by the author has reference to and applies to different. condi-
tions. Had there been any offer made to show how the respondent got any
blood upon these exhibits, the court would have admitted the evidence, as
it fairly appears that the court, by the inguiry, sought information as to
whether or not the respondent offered to show that he got blood on his trou-
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sers and coat at the time in question. But when cousel for the respondent
informed the court that they could not make that offer, but only to show
an opportunity to have done it, it was properly excluded.

We might further add that the respondent stated in his cross exam-
ination that he did not know of and could not explain the presence of this
blood upon hig clothing the Monday night following the murder. He was
inquired of respecting that matter as follows: '

Q. The matter of blood on your clothes was brought to your attention
Monday night, was it not?

A, Yes.

Q. You knew you were detained Monday night, didn’t you?

A, VYes.

Q. And you knew you were under suspicion, didn’t ydu ?

A, Yes.

Q. And you knew from your information for what you were under

suspicion Monday night, didn’t you?

A, Yes.

Q. The matter of this blood was a matter of some importance to you
then, wasn't it?

A, Well, T don’t know what you mean by importance to me.

Q. Well, you thought it was something that youn should explain if ‘you
could, didn’t you?

A, Yes,

Q. Friday night you said in your statement you couldn't explain it,
didn’t you?

A. Tdon't know where ] got it.

Q. Dd you wear that coat Saturday night?

A, Yes.
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And trousers? i S T
Yes. f
Did they look all right when you put them on?

Yes. .

You had your working clothes on during the day

Yes,

Those was the clothes you wore for your best?

Yes.

You changed from your working clothes Saturday night after
supper and put on these good clothes?

Yes.

To go downstown?

Yes. '

You wanted to look as neat as you could, didn’t you?

Yes.

The clpthes looked good, didn’t they, when you put them on?
Yes.

You didn’t see anything wrong with them, did you?

No. (Tr. 960) '
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EXCEPTION NO. 8
The argument by the attorney for the state was proper in referring to
the evidence, that there had been none to show any suspicion of guilt on the
part of anybody except the respondent. It was simply an argument based
upon facts and circumstances which the attorney was attempting to ex-
plain to the jury, and properly so. It was not an attempt on the attorney’s

part in any way to give the jury to understand that it was the respondent’s
dut yto prove that somebody else committed the crime.

There can be no question that the attorney was well within his rights
and the jury could not have been misled. The court in his charge, on many
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occasions called the jury’s attention to the dufy of the state to prove its
case béyond a reasonable doubt. In calling the jury’s attention further to
the rule required in cases where proof is by circumstantial evidence, the
court ingtructed the jury:

“In order to convict, you must be satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt that
each faet and circumstance upon which you base your verdict is true; and
that such facts and circumstances are inconsistent upon any theory con-
sistent with the innocence of the respondent, and incapable of explanation
npon any reasonable theory other than that of his guilt. It is not enough
that all the circumstances proved are consistent with and point to his guilt.
To authorize a convietion, the circumstances must not only be in harmony
with the guilt of the accused, but they must be of such a character that
they cannot reasonably be true in the ordinary nature of things and the res-
‘pondent be innocent. Mere probabilities are not sufficient to warrant a con-
vietion, nor is it sufficient that the greater weight of the evidence éupports

“the indictmert. To warrant a conviction of the respondent, his guilt must
be so clearly and conclusively proven that there is no reasonable theory

upon which he can be innocent, when all the facts and eircumstances pro-
-ven heyond a reasonable doubt are considered. If the facts and circum-
" stances thug established satisfy you of the guilt of the respondent beyond a
-reagonable doubt, then such evidence is sufficient to authorize you in finding
- g verdict of guilty.” (Tr. 1006 and 1007)

The cages cited by the respondent under this exception are not in point.
The case of Hall v. Fleteher was where the attorney for the plaintiff eriti-
“cized the fact that the defendant was not in the court room fo listen to his
argument when it had appeared that the defendant had been in court and
ubmitted to cross examination by the plaintiff’s attorney. This comment
the court held improper.
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The ease of State v. Fitzgerald cited by the respondent was where the
State’s Attorney commented upon the absence of a witness and the respon-
dent’s failure to call the witness, when it appeared that the witness was

_equally available to the state. We submit that there is nothing in the cases
cited which tends to support the claim that the argument of the attorney
in the case at bar was improper. We submit there is no error.

EXCEPTION NO. 9

What we have said with respect to exception No. 5 and exception N o.'
6 applies to exception No. 9; as the guestion raised in exception No. 9 1o
the Judge’s charge pertaing to the admission of the Pandjiris evidence and.
the motion to strike it out. We think this matter has been covered by what
we have already stated in exception No. 5 and exception No. 6.

CONCLUSION

No error appearing in the record, we respectfully submit that the judg-
ment below :Ishould be affirmed.
Respectfully submitted,
ROBERT R. TWITCHELL, State’s Attorney
J. WARD CARVER, Attorney General.
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